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STATE OF DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

RICHARD J. GEISENBERGER
SECRETARY OF FINANCE

To the Citizens, Governor, and
Members of the Legislature of the
State of Delaware:

It is my pleasure to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of Delaware (the State) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This report has been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to
state and local governments, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The State continues to follow the recommendations of the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for the form and content of
government financial reports and participates in the GFOA's program for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, as well as the completeness and fairness of
the CAFR's presentation, rests with the Department of Finance. The management of the
Department of Finance has established a comprehensive framework of internal control to provide
a reasonable basis for asserting that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the information
presented is accurate in all material respects and fairly sets forth the State's financial position and
results of operations in accordance with GAAP. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the State's financial activities are included.

The report is presented in these sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of selected State officials, the State’s
organizational chart, and the GFOA Certificate of Achievement. The financial section includes
the independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis (MDé&A), basic
financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements, and required supplementary
information. The statistical section includes selected financial, demographic, and economic
information.

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
an MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it. The State’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

CARVEL STATE OFFICE BUILDING, 820 N. FRENCH ST., 8™ FLOOR, WILMINGTON, DE 19801
TELEPHONE: (302)577-8979 — FAX: (302)577-8982



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The State is located on the eastern seaboard of the United States and is bordered by the
Atlantic Ocean, the Delaware Bay and the states of New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Maryland.
The State is 96 miles long and has a land area of 1,955 square miles. In 2016, it is estimated that
over 952,000 people reside here. As the first state to ratify the United States Constitution on
December 7, 1787, the State of Delaware is known as "The First State." The structure of the
State’s government, which is similar to other states, consists of three branches that operate
through a system of checks and balances. The executive branch is comprised of the Governor, L.
Governor, State Treasurer, State Auditor, Attorney General and Insurance Commissioner. The
legislative branch is bicameral and consists of a 21-member Senate and a 41-member House of
Representatives. The judicial branch includes the Supreme Court, Superior Court, Court of
Chancery, and other courts.

The State’s reporting entity reflected in the CAFR, which is described more fully in
Note 1 to the basic financial statements, conforms to the requirements of GASB Statement No.
61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus and amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 34. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental
financial reporting entity, to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that
have arisen since the issuance of Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Consequently, the transmittal
letter, MD&A, and the financial statements focus on the primary government and its activities.
Although information pertaining to the discretely presented component units is provided, their
separately issued financial statements should be read to obtain a complete overview of their
financial position.

The State budgets and controls its financial activities on the cash basis of accounting during
its fiscal year. In compliance with State law, the State records its financial transactions in either
of two major categories - the budgetary general fund or budgetary special funds. References to
these funds include the terms "budgetary" or "budgetary basis" to differentiate them from the
GAAP funds of the same name which encompass different funding categories. GAAP fund
definitions for accounting purposes differ from those of the budgetary basis. General and special
funds are fully explained in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

The budgetary general fund provides for the cost of the State's general operations and is
credited with all tax and other revenue of the State not dedicated to budgetary special funds. All
disbursements from the budgetary general fund must be authorized by appropriations of the
General Assembly.

Budgetary special funds are designated for specific purposes. The appropriate budgetary
special fund is credited with tax or other revenue allocated and is charged with the related
disbursements. Examples of specific uses of budgetary special funds include the Transportation
Trust Fund, which collects some of its revenue through motor fuel taxes and tolls. Federal
payments, unemployment compensation and local school funds are examples of nonappropriated
special funds. Some special funds, such as the Delaware State Housing Authority and the State
Pension Office, contain both appropriated funds for operations and non-appropriated funds for



specific programs, such as public housing and pension benefits.

Federal funds, which are credited to budgetary special funds, are not appropriated, but are
subject to the review and approval of the State Office of Management and Budget and the
Delaware State Clearinghouse Committee for Federal Aid Coordination. The Committee is
comprised of 10 members, including the Secretary of Finance, Director of the Office of
Management and Budget, Director of the Division of Small Business, Development and
Tourism, the Controller General, and six legislators.

Budgetary Control and Financial Management Systems

Disbursements are controlled by an encumbrance accounting system, via purchase orders,
designed to provide information on the actual extent of the State's obligations and guard against
over-committing available funds. Appropriations are reduced immediately when purchase orders
are issued for goods and services. The total amount of budgetary general fund cash
disbursements, plus unliquidated encumbrances, cannot exceed the amount appropriated by the
General Assembly for any specific budgetary line items by department. Internal controls prevent
State organizations from spending beyond budgetary limits and statutory requirements described
in the Budget and Accounting Manual (the BAM), which dictates the process for handling cash,
assets, the use of credit cards, payroll, procurement, budgeting and approvals over all financial
transactions. (See Notes to Required Supplementary Information for more details.)

The majority of the State's financial transactions are processed through the statewide
accounting system, which is a comprehensive, enterprise-wide financial system. However,
certain special funds have financial activity external to that system, such as the Delaware
Transportation Authority, the Delaware State Housing Authority and Delaware State University.
This activity is governed in strict adherence to legislative regulations and guidelines established
by their boards. In addition, these entities are audited annually and produce published financial
reports.

Budget Process

Each fall, State organizations submit requests for operating and capital funds for the next
fiscal year to the Office of Management and Budget and public hearings are held to review the
requests. The Governor's proposed operating and capital budgets for the general fund and special
funds, including the Transportation Trust Fund, are then drafted and presented by the Governor
to the General Assembly in January. The General Assembly's Joint Finance and Bond Bill
Committees hold hearings and mark up the Governor's proposed operating and capital budgets.
As amended, the budgets are expected to be enacted on July 1.

Appropriation Limit

The State Constitution limits annual appropriations by majority vote of both houses of the
General Assembly to 98% of estimated budgetary general fund revenue plus the unencumbered
budgetary general fund balance from the previous fiscal year. An exception to this limit may be
made in the event of a declared emergency, with the approval of a three-fifths vote of the



members of each house of the General Assembly. No appropriation may be made which
exceeds 100% of estimated budgetary general fund revenue plus the unencumbered general
fund balance from the previous fiscal year.

Tax Limitations

The State Constitution was amended in May 1980 to limit tax and license fee increases or
the imposition of any new taxes or fees to a three-fifths vote of each house of the General
Assembly, rather than by a simple majority vote. An exception exists for tax increases to meet
debt service on outstanding obligations of the State for which insufficient revenue is available
when such debt service is due.

Revenue and Expenditure Forecasting

The Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (DEFAC), an entity created by
executive order in 1977, is comprised of 31 members from the executive and legislative branches
of State government and the private sector, as appointed by the Governor. DEFAC submits
revenue and expenditure forecasts for the Budgetary General Fund and the Transportation Trust
Fund to the Governor and the General Assembly regularly throughout the fiscal year. These
forecasts are meant to ensure compliance with State constitutional limits on spending authority
so future expenditures do not exceed expected revenues. In addition, revenue forecasts near
year-end for the next fiscal year are utilized to calculate the corresponding statutory debt limits.

DEFAC prepares revenue estimates six times each fiscal year in September, December,
March, April, May and June for the current fiscal year and the succeeding two fiscal years. A
revenue forecast for the current fiscal year and the succeeding four fiscal years is generated once
each year, generally in September. In addition, budgetary general fund and transportation trust
fund expenditure forecasts are generated for the current fiscal year in September, December,
March, April, May and June.

Additionally, DEFAC advises the Governor and General Assembly on economic conditions
in the State and advises the Governor and the Secretary of Finance on tax policy. Executive
Order No. 4, signed by Governor Carney in February 2017, established the Government
Efficiency and Accountability Review (GEAR) Board to identify, on an on-going basis, cost
savings and continuous improvement opportunities across state government. DEFAC meetings,
as well as GEAR meetings, are open to the public and provide a forum for members of the public
and private sectors to exchange views on matters of economic and fiscal concern for the State.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Delaware’s unemployment rate tends to reflect the national rate, but typically at lower
levels. On average, Delaware’s unemployment rate has been 1.3 percentage points lower than
the U.S. rate since 1982. In 2016, Delaware’s annual unemployment rate of 4.4 percent was 0.5
percent lower than the national average of 4.9 percent. Through the first half of 2017, however,



the unemployment rate trend makes it likely that Delaware’s rate for 2017 will exceed 2016 and
the national rate.

Delaware’s per capita personal income in 2016 ranked 21* in the U.S. and was 97 percent of
the national average. Income growth experienced an increase of 1.7 percent over 2015 vs. 1.6
percent in the nation. Aggregate personal income growth is expected to slightly lag national
growth levels due, in part, to high levels of in-migration among retirees.

Despite job losses at DuPont and other large employers, employment levels continue to
grow due to growth in financial services and professional and business services and are expected
to match national growth rates for the remainder of the decade.

Aided by active economic development policies, strong private sector leadership, an
attentive administration and supportive legislators, Delaware’s economy continues to do well.
Based in large part on service-providing enterprises, especially financial activities, Delaware has
targeted statutory and tax policy changes to encourage financial sector development and to retain
important employers. The State’s major financial service employers, J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.,
Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank Delaware and Capital One, continue to maintain a major
presence in the State and demonstrate the State’s importance as a financial center. The main
driver of Delaware’s financial sector, the credit card industry, has benefited from strong
consumer fundamentals, a steady U.S. economic recovery, and rising demand for credit card
borrowing. In response to the potential loss of The Chemours Company, Delaware enacted The
Delaware Competes Act which changes the method employed to apportion taxable income for
multi-state corporations. Chemours recent announcement of the construction of a $150 million
facility at the University of Delaware’s STAR campus to leverage state-of-the-art analytical and
unique research capabilities between Chemours and the University is evidence of its continued
commitment to Delaware. When faced with the news that Dow-Dupont planned to split the
merged company into three separate and independent corporations, Delaware distinguished itself
as a natural location for global headquarters and a center for research and development. The
State responded with The Commitment to Innovation Act, which modernized Delaware’s
research and development tax credit and established job retention tax credits for firms that
establish worldwide headquarters in the State. The Commitment to Innovation Act was among
the critical elements in Dow-Dupont’s decision to locate the headquarters of both the agricultural
company and specialty products spin-offs in Delaware and its announcement in September 2017
to locate seven additional business lines in its specialty products unit.

In early 2017, Governor John Carney announced the Delaware Prosperity Partnership
(DPP), a change to the way Delaware attracts new investment. The DPP is a public-private non-
profit corporation led by a Board consisting of business leaders and public officials that will craft
a comprehensive strategic plan backed by a marketing campaign that pursues new investment
and jobs in key industries. The new organization will recruit businesses to the State, lead market
and promotion activities that leverage the businesses already incorporated in Delaware, facilitate
the development of a stronger entrepreneurial and innovative economic system in Delaware,
consolidate international and foreign direct investment attraction activities, align economic
development activities with workforce development programs and support economic



development efforts at the local level. Small business development and tourism will continue to
be marketed by the State under the Department of State.

Although less reliant on manufacturing, the State has made important strides to reinvigorate,
modernize, and repurpose its manufacturing base. The University of Delaware, on the site of the
former Chrysler plant, pursues science, technology and advanced research. As part of the health
sciences complex, the “STAR” campus houses core labs for use by teams of clinical and
academic researchers dedicated to advanced healthcare research, education and delivery. In
October 2017, the University of Delaware broke ground on a $156 million Delaware
Biopharmaceutical Innovation Building, a six-story, 200,000 square foot building to mass
produce cutting-edge biopharmaceuticals.

Delaware’s business-friendly legal system continues to attract incorporations and limited
liability company and partnership formations. Two-thirds of Fortune 500 companies are
incorporated in Delaware and more than 80% of U.S.-based new initial public offerings (IPOs)
choose Delaware as their legal home. New entity formations rose 6.3% in 2016 to a record
189,000. As of December 2016, the total number of active business entities registered with the
Division of Corporations exceeded 1,238,000.

Delaware has one of the most diversified gaming portfolios in the country. In addition to
traditional and video lottery, Delaware offers parlay betting on pro football games and Keno.
Delaware has over 650 retail outlets available to lottery players including the State’s three
licensed casinos. Since 2013, Delaware, Nevada, and most recently New Jersey participate in a
Multi-State Internet Gaming Agreement (“i-gaming”) allowing poker players to participate in
regulated multi-jurisdictional online poker rooms.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP has audited the State’s basic financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Based upon that audit, the independent
auditor has issued an unmodified opinion that the State of Delaware’s basic financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. Their report on the basic
financial statements has been included in the financial section of this CAFR.

The State Auditor of Accounts performs periodic financial and compliance audits of the
various State departments, agencies and institutions of higher education and has primary
responsibility for conducting audits under the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Grant
Guidance. Results of these audits may be found in separately issued audit reports and may be
obtained by contacting the Office of Auditor of Accounts, Townsend Building, Suite 1, 401
Federal Street, Dover, Delaware 19901.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of

Delaware for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The Certificate of Achievement
is a prestigious national award that recognizes conformance with the highest standards for

Vi



preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government unit must publish a timely, easily readable, and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report that conforms to program standards. The report
must comply with both generally accepted accounting principles and all applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. The State has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last 22 consecutive years (fiscal years 1995 — 2016). We
believe that this year’s report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another

certificate.
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CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Delaware (the State), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not audit the financial statements of certain agencies and component units of the State, which
represent the indicated percent of total assets and deferred outflows of resources, total net position and
fund balance, and total revenues as presented in the table below. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it related to the amounts included for those funds and component units, is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors.

Percentage Audited by
Other Auditors
Assets and
Deferred

Outflows of Net Position/

Resources Revenues Fund Balance
Governmental Activities 0% 0% 1%
Business-type Activities 97% 94% 96%
Discretely Presented Component Units 85% 75% 90%
General Fund 2% 0% 6%
Lottery Fund 100% 100% 100%
DelDOT Fund 100% 100% 100%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 95% 82% 96%
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The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State as of June 30, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the
accompanying table of contents (collectively referred to as RSI) be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary
information and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.



The Honorable Governor and
Honorable Members of the State Legislature
State of Delaware

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

%«ZMW L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
December 22, 2017



STATE OF DELAWARE
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Delaware’s (the State’s) financial
activities as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Readers are encouraged to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the letter
of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-vii of this report, and the State’s financial statements,
which follow this section.

These financial statements have been prepared using the financial accounting model adopted by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the State exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $2,628.2 million
(net position). Discretely presented component units reported a net position of $1,226.7
million, an increase of $41.4 million from the previous year as restated, resulting from prior
year correction of errors.

e As a result of its operations, the primary government’s total net position decreased by
$663.9 million (20.2%) in fiscal year 2017 when compared to the previous year’s ending
net position. Net position of governmental activities decreased by $813.3 million (224.7%)
from the previous year, while net position of the business-type activities increased $149.3
million (4.1%) from the previous year.

e The State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,275.3
million, a decrease of $351.8 million (21.6%) in comparison with the prior year balance.

e The general fund reported unassigned fund balance of $11.4 million which was 0.2% of
total general fund expenditures.

e The State’s total general obligation debt increased $52.9 million (2.8%) during fiscal year
2017 to $1,955.8 million. Of the State’s outstanding general obligation debt, $496.6 million
(25.4%) has been issued on behalf of local school districts, which is supported by the
property tax revenues of those districts. In addition, the State has $1,029.8 million in
outstanding revenue bonds with $47.0 million for energy conservation projects and $982.8
million for transportation projects.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the State’s basic financial
statements. The State’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains additional required supplementary information and
other supplementary information, in addition to the basic financial statements.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the State’s operations, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position reports the difference between the State’s assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
State is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the State’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event that created the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. As a result,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the State that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the State include general
government, health and children’s services, judicial and public safety, natural resources and
environmental control, labor and education. The business-type activities of the State include
transportation, lottery and unemployment services.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the State (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate entities for which the State is financially accountable
(discretely presented component units). These entities include the Delaware State Housing
Authority, the Diamond State Port Corporation, the Riverfront Development Corporation,
Delaware State University, the Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation and 25
charter schools. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government. The government-wide financial
statements can be found on pages 20 - 21 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The State, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The State’s funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

- Governmental Funds Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of available resources, as well as on balances of available resources on hand at the end of the
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fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for government funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and
the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The State’s governmental funds include the general, federal, local school district, and capital
projects funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet
and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance (deficit) for these funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 25 of this report.

The combining schedule for the local school districts that reflects the local school district fund
can be found on pages 159 - 162 of this report.

The State budgets and controls its financial activities on the cash basis of accounting. In
compliance with State law, the State records its financial transactions in either of two major
categories — the General Fund or the Special Fund. References to these funds in this report
include the terms “budgetary” or “budgetary basis” to differentiate them from the GAAP funds
of the same name which encompass different funding categories. The State adopts an annual
appropriated budget for its budgetary general fund and special fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the budgetary general fund and special fund to demonstrate
compliance with the budget. The schedules can be found on page 132 of this report.

- Proprietary Funds Proprietary Funds charge customers for the services they provide —
whether they are provided to outside customers (enterprise funds) or other State agencies and
other governments (internal service funds). Proprietary Funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Lottery, Unemployment
Insurance Trust Fund and the Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT), all of which
are considered to be major funds of the State.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 - 28 of this report.

- Fiduciary Funds The State acts as a fiduciary to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the State
of Delaware’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used
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for proprietary funds. These funds are used where the State holds assets in trust or as an agent
for others, including the pension trust funds and agency funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29 - 30 of this report. The
combining fiduciary and agency fund statements can be found on pages 154 - 158.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 33 - 128 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) concerning the status of the State’s legally adopted
budget, the maintenance of the State’s infrastructure and additional schedules related to funding
status and progress, annual pension costs and actuarial methods and assumptions for the State’s
pension and OPEB trusts. The RSI can be found on pages 130 - 152 of this report.

Statewide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The State’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $2,628.2 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the State’s net position of $5,096.8 million reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, vehicles, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to
acquire those assets. The State uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the State’s investment in capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities. Restricted net position, comprising $1,291.5 million of total net position,
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation on how they can be used. The remaining portion of the State’s net position represents
the unrestricted deficit net position of $3,760.1 million.
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Assets:
Non-capital Assets
Capital Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Long-term Liabilities
Outstanding
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted Deficit

Total Net Position

Condensed Financial Information - Primary Government

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, June 30, 2017

As of June 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$ 2781022 § 2890963 § 721378 § 748534 § 3,502,400 $ 3,639,497
3,761,862 3,768,563 4,595,954 4,402,702 8,357,816 8,171,265
6,542,884 6,059,526 5,317,332 5,151,236 11,860,216 11,810,762
756,874 194,889 68,824 49,649 825,698 244,538
7,201,606 5,897,362 1,323,208 1,278,247 8,524,814 7,175,609
1,200,404 1,074,590 237,285 239,538 1,437,689 1,314,128
8,402,010 6,971,952 1,560,493 1,517,785 9,962,503 8,489,737
72,925 244 380 22,316 29,078 95,241 273,458
1,476,850 1,534,319 3,619,968 3,505,882 5,096,818 5,040,201
970,545 937,764 320,957 306,057 1,291,502 1,243,821
(3,622,572) (2,334,000 (137,578) (157,917 (3,760,150) (2,991,917
$ (L175177) § (361917) § 3803347 § 3654022 § 2628170 § 3,292,105
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The following condensed financial information is derived from the government-wide Statement of
Activities and reflects the changes in net position during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Position - Primary Government
For Year End June 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 656,591 $ 546,975 $ 1,302,335 $ 1,321,399 $ 1,958,926 $ 1,868,374
Operating Grants and
Contributions 2,201,933 2,196,373 207,338 202,900 2,409,271 2,399,273
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Personal Income Taxes 1,180,975 1,112,368 - - 1,180,975 1,112,368
Business Taxes 2,281,220 2,294,173 - - 2,281,220 2,294,173
Real Estate Taxes 625,903 573,968 - - 625,903 573,968
Other Taxes 256,998 244,526 - - 256,998 244,526
Investment Income (Loss) 18,237 12,584 2,858 6,726 21,095 19,310
Miscellaneous 20,109 16,694 - - 20,109 16,694
Total Revenues 7,241,966 6,997,661 1,512,531 1,531,025 8,754,497 8,528,686
Expenses:
General Government 1,167,143 906,593 - - 1,167,143 906,593
Health and Children's
Services 3,259,908 3,087,138 - - 3,259,908 3,087,138
Judicial and Public Safety 753,778 714,932 - - 753,778 714,932
Natural Resources and
Environmental Control 164,879 160,059 - - 164,879 160,059
Labor 93,510 74,766 - - 93,510 74,766
Education 2,799,115 2,722,666 - - 2,799,115 2,722,666
Interest Expense 62,815 91,894 - - 62,815 91,894
Lottery - - 383,270 382,424 383,270 382,424
Transportation/DelDOT - - 671,765 682,364 671,765 682,364
Unemployment - - 62,249 64,629 62,249 64,629
Total Expenses 8,301,148 7,758,048 1,117,284 1,129,417 9,418,432 8,887,465
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Before Transfers (1,059,182) (760,387) 395,247 401,608 (663,935) (358,779)
Transfers 245,922 248,822 (245,922) (248,822) - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (813,260) (511,565) 149,325 152,786 (663,935) (358,779)
Net Position - Beginning of
Year (361,917) 149,648 3,654,022 3,501,236 3,292,105 3,650,884
Net Position - End of Year $ (1,175,177) $  (361,917) $ 3,803,347 $ 3,654,022 $ 2,628,170 $ 3,292,105

Governmental Activities

The capital assets of the governmental activities decreased by $6.7 million (0.2%) from the prior
year. The decrease is due largely to increased depreciation expense, specifically for software with
significant new projects completed during the fiscal year.

The decrease in governmental activities non-capital assets is due to a decrease in cash and
investments as a result of increased general government, health and children’s services, and
education expenditures as well as a decrease in taxes receivables.

The increase in governmental activities long-term liabilities outstanding of $1,304.2 million
(22.1%) is primarily due to an increase in the net pension liability of $804.0 million, the other post-
employment benefits liability, escheat liability, and general obligation bonds. At June 30, 2017,
the long-term obligation for OPEB was $2,556.1 million, an increase of $293.0 million (12.9%)
from fiscal year 2016. The OPEB obligation will increase each year as the State continues to defer
full funding of its annual required contribution. In addition, the escheat liability increased $187.5
million (48.1%) with more anticipated claims due to the automated claims process and general
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obligation long term debt increased by $52.9 million (2.8%) from fiscal year 2016. The State’s
debt as a percentage of the State’s personal income was 7.1% and 7.2%, respectively in fiscal years
2017 and 2016. The State’s debt burden reflects its centralized role in financing facilities, such as
schools and prisons.

Deferred outflows of resources are $756.9 million, an increase of $562.0 million (288.4%) and are
largely for difference between projected and actual investment earinings and changes in
assumptions for the pension plan. Deferred inflows of resources are $72.9 million, a decrease of
$171.5 million (70.2%) and are mostly for the differences between the projected and actual
investment earnings on the pension plan assets.

Since fiscal year 2016, the net position for governmental activities has decreased by $813.3
million. A comparison of the cost of services by function for the State’s governmental activities is
shown in the following chart, along with the revenues used to cover the net expenses of the
governmental activities. Key elements of the decrease in the State’s net position from
governmental activities are as follows:

Total general revenues of governmental activities increased overall by $129.1 million (3.0%)
relating primarily to increases in personal income taxes of $68.6 million (6.2%), decreases in
business taxes of $13.0 million (0.6%), increases in real estate taxes of $51.9 million (9.0%), and
increases in other taxes of $12.5 million (5.1%). The increase in personal income tax revenues
was attributable to an increase in collections with rising personal income, and the decrease in
business taxes was due to decreases in corporate income taxes with lower business profits
decreasing collections. The increase in real estate tax revenues is the result of increased millage
rates along with increased assessments from new construction due to new developments.

Program revenues increased by $115.2 million (4.2%) from the prior year due mostly to an increase
in charges for services. This increase is due to increases in licenses and fees.

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Operating Grants and Miscellaneous
Contributions 0.3% Personal Income Tax
30.4% ' 16.3%

Other Taxes
3.5%

Charges for Services
9.1%

Business Taxes
31.5%
Investment Earnings

Real Estate Taxes
0.3%

8.6%
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Expenses for governmental activities, not including interest on long-term debt, increased
during fiscal year 2017 by $572.2 million (7.5%). The increase in governmental activities is
primarily due to the increased spending of $76.4 million (2.8%) for Education, $172.8 million
(5.6%) for Health and Children’s Services, and $260.6 million (28.7%) for General
Government. Education increased due to additional costs for salaries and benefits as the student
population continues to increase. Health and Children’s Services increased as a result of a
increased services in the Medicaid program. General Government expenses increased as a
result of changes in the escheat liability resulting in an additional $187.5 million in expenses
as well as continued increases in all employee benefits of approximately $40.0 million.

Expenses and Program Revenues- Governmental Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

$3,500,000

$3,000,000 - mExpenses 2017
DOExpenses 2016

$2,500,000 - @Program Revenues 2017

OProgram Revenues 2016

$2,000,000 -|
$1,500,000 -
$1,000,000 -
$500,000 -| Il:I

$0 | B

General Government  Health and Children's  Judicial and Public ~ Natural Resources and Labor Education Interest on Long-Term
Services Safety Environmental Control Debt

Business-type Activities

The net position for business-type activities increased by $149.3 million (4.1%) in fiscal year
2017. This increase is comprised of a $115.3 million (3.3%) increase in net position for
DelDOT plus a $34.0 million (31.0%) increase in the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund.

The increase of $34.0 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to an increase of $49.9 million
in fiscal year 2016 for the Delaware Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund net position is due
to decreases in the State unemployment taxes. The operating revenues decreased by $18.9
million (16.9%) with the decrease in taxes collected and operating expenses decreased by
$2.4 million (3.7%) due to decreases in unemployment benefits paid. The decreases are a
result of continued improvements in the economy resulting in a decrease in the tax rate and
less individuals unemployed result in fewer individuals collecting benefits.

DelDOT’s net position at June 30, 2017 increased by $115.3 million from June 30, 2016.
Change in net position increased from $102.8 million in fiscal year 2016 to $115.3 million
in fiscal year 2017. DelDOT’s total operating revenues increased by $7.1 million (1.2%)
while operating expenses decreased by $5.9 million (0.9%). The change in revenue is
primarily attributable to an increase in toll revenues with increased travel and increased

11
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motor vehicles revenues and motor fuel taxes. The decrease in operating expenditures is
primarily a result of decreases in professional fees for planning projects and paving and
rehabilitation of roads. Total capital assets (net of depreciation) increased $193.3 million to
$4,596.0 million during fiscal year 2017 primarily due to the completion of road projects.

There was no change in the Lottery’s net position. By law, the Lottery’s net position cannot
exceed $1.0 million. Lottery revenue for fiscal year 2017 showed a decrease over fiscal year
2016 by $7.3 million or 1.1%. This decrease is largely due to decreased sales of Powerball
and Mega Millions tickets, which are typically driven by the size of the jackpot. The lack of
higher jackpots in fiscal year 2017 is the cause for the decrease in sales on these games.

The Lottery transferred $244.7 million in gaming revenues to the State, a decrease of $8.2
million (3.2%).

Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

Operating and Capital
Grants and Contributions
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Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds

As noted earlier, the State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of available resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State’s
financing requirements. Unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources at the end of the fiscal year.

Fund balance classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in the
governmental funds. This is further described in note 1 and note 19 of the basic financial
statements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1,275.3 million, a decrease of $351.8 million over the prior year fund balance.

Of this amount, $27.7 million is nonspendable (2.2%), either due to its form or legal constraints,
$970.5 million (76.1%) is restricted for specific programs by external constraints and $152.5
million (11.9%) is committed for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal
action of the Delaware Legislature. An additional $113.2 million (8.9%) has been assigned to
specific purposes by management. The remaining $11.4 million (0.9%) of fund balance is
unassigned.

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the operation and administration of the State. The fund balance
decreased by $364.3 million for the fiscal year.

Total General Fund revenues increased by $190.0 million (4.3%) which was due to several factors.
Personal income taxes increased by $68.6 million, which was due to increased collections with
rising personal income. This increase was offset by decreased business taxes of $12.9 million due
to decreased corporate income taxes because of decreased business profits. In addition, other tax
revenue, licenses, fees, permits and fines and other revenue increases are $12.4 million, $37.6
million and $101.7 million, respectively. Other revenue increases are due to increased rebates and
other special program revenues.

Total General Fund expenditures increased by $203.0 million (4.0%). This was primarily due to
increases in General Government of $104.9 million and Health and Children’s Services of $58.7
million. The increase in expenditures for General Government was in large part due to an increase
in the expenses for the escheat related to the increased liability. Health and Children’s Services
increases were the result of additional Medicaid costs.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $11.4 million
and the total fund balance was $534.6 million.

Federal Funds

Federal Funds represent pass through grants used for designated purposes. These funds report
federal grant revenues and the related expenditures to support the State’s grant programs. Total
federal fund revenues and expenditures increased by $25.0 and $30.2 million, respectively.
Revenues and expenditures increased for Health and Children’s Services by $27.8 and $41.4
million, respectively due largely to increased services, including Medicaid.

Local School District Funds

These funds are used to account for activities relating to the State’s local school districts, which
are funded by locally raised real estate taxes and other revenues. The fund balance increased by
$17.7 million to $286.5 million due to increased taxes of $52.0 million offset by an increase in
expenditures of $20.0 million to serve the increasing student population.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the construction and acquisition of capital assets of
the primary government. Capital outlay expenditures totaled $264.5 million in fiscal year 2017, an
increase of $32.6 million with additional projects underway for both educational institutions and
general government in fiscal year 2017.

Proprietary Funds

The State’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. The Proprietary Fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Lottery, Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund and the DelDOT Fund, all of
which are considered to be part of the primary government and major funds of the State.

Total Proprietary Fund net position increased in fiscal year 2017 by $149.3 million as a result of
operations. Pages 11-12, discuss the changes in net position of the business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Budgetary General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the fiscal year,
total fund balance decreased by $93.0 million.

Revenues were $68.3 million (1.7%) more than the previous fiscal year. This was due to decreases
in the corporate income tax of $22.5 million (15.7%), offset by increases in personal income tax
of $45.0 million (3.5%), franchise fees of $8.4 million (1.2%), limited partnership and LLCs of
$15.5 million (5.8%), and realty transfer taxes of $6.9 million (7.7%). The $22.5 million decrease
in corporate income tax was the result of overall lower business profits decreasing receipts, and
the $45.0 million increase in personal income taxes was due to rising personal income.
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Expenditures were $192.4 million (4.9%) more than the previous fiscal year. Salaries and wages
increased by $41.1 million (3.0%) and benefit costs increased by $26.8 million (5.9%), Grants-in-
Aid increased by $16.1 million (4.6%), Medicaid costs increased by $50.6 million (7.3%),
contractual services increased by $23.8 million (4.6%) and pensions increased by $20.4 million
(6.8%).

The original budget authorizes current fiscal year operating and administrative expenditures.
Included in the final budget are the original budget, prior year encumbrances, multi-year project
budgetary carry-forwards from the prior fiscal years, and all modifications to the original budget.
The most significant components are the original budget and carry-forwards from the prior fiscal
year. The unused appropriations from a prior year will carry forward to the final budget for
authorized capital projects and grants until the funds are spent.

The significant budget expense variances from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017 are $23.4
million, $68.3 million and $83.2 million increases for Judicial and Public Safety, Health and
Children’s Services, and Education, respectively due to multi-year ongoing projects.

Funded projects, which are not completed by year-end, may carry over unspent funds into fiscal
year 2017. Unspent funds are reflected in the final budget which may cause variances from original
budget.

Actual revenues for the general fund exceeded budgeted revenues by $54.4 million due largely to
the collection near year-end of unexpected business taxes, particularly corporate income tax. For
the special fund, actual revenues exceed budgeted due to additional grant and fees received. Actual
expenditures were $117.9 million for the general fund and $134.7 million for the special fund less
than budgeted due to cost containment measures instituted near year-end along with deferring of
expenses until fiscal year 2018.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities, as of
June 30, 2017, amounted to $8,357.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles and equipment, easements,
roads, highways, and bridges. The total decrease in capital assets for governmental activities was
$6.7 million (0.2%) and the increase for business-type activities was $193.3 million (4.4%).

Major capital asset increases in the business-type activities during the current fiscal year are due
to the increased spending at DelDOT for projects including US 301, State Route 1, the West Dover
Connector, and the Wilmington Riverfront/Christina River Bridge.

As allowed by GASB, the State has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation
expense on selected infrastructure assets. Under this alternative method, referred to as the modified
approach, the State expenses certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not report
depreciation expense. Assets accounted for under the modified approach include 4,452 centerline
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miles and 843 bridges that the State is responsible to maintain with a total book value of $4,005.1
million as of June 30, 2017.

It is the State's policy to maintain at least 85% of its highway system at a fair or better condition
rating and 95% of its national bridge inventory (combined structural and deck ratings) at a fair or
better condition rating as follows:

The condition of road pavement is measured using the Overall Pavement Condition (OPC) system,
which is based on the extent and severity of various pavement distresses that are visually observed.
The OPC system uses a measurement scale that is based on a condition index ranging from 0 for
poor pavement to 5 for pavement in excellent condition.

The condition of bridges is measured using the "Bridge Condition Rating" (BCR), which is based
on the Federal Highway Administration's Coding Guide, "Recording and Coding Guide for the
Structure Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation's Bridges". The BCR uses a measurement scale
that is based on a condition index ranging from 0 to 9, 0 to 4 for substandard bridges, and 9 for
bridges in perfect condition. For reporting purposes, substandard bridges are classified as those
with a rating of 4 or less. The good or better condition bridges are taken as those with ratings of 6
to 9. A rating of 5 is considered fair.

The Department performs condition assessments of eligible infrastructure assets at least every
three years.

Of the Department's 843 bridge structures that were rated, 69.0% received a good or better BCR
rating, 27.1% were rated fair, and 3.9% received a substandard rating. Of the 7,853,193 square feet
of bridge deck that was rated, 61.0% received an OPC condition rating of good or better, 34.0%
received a fair rating, and 5.0% received a substandard deck rating. Of the 4,452 centerline miles,
4,388 were rated and 96.0% received a fair or better OPC rating and 2.6% received a poor rating.

The estimate to maintain and preserve DelDOT's infrastructure was $246.9 million for fiscal year
2017. The actual expenditures were $297.4 million for 2017, which is $50.4 million over the
estimate. The estimated expenditures represent annual bond bill authorizations, and the actual
expenditures represent the current year spending, which includes cumulative authorizations.

Additional information on the State’s capital assets can be found in Note 1 on pages 47 - 48, Note
6 on pages 75 — 77 and pages 135 - 136 in the Required Supplementary Information.
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A summary of the State’s primary government’s capital assets, net of depreciation is as follows:

State of Delaware Capital Assets as of June 30, 2017
Net of Depreciation
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Land $ 487,009 $ 482,739 $ 310,298 $ 306,704 $ 797,307 $ 789,443
Land Improvements 171,246 180,638 - - 171,246 180,638
Buildings 2,557,626 2,643,117 131,137 118,554 2,688,763 2,761,671
Easements 83,294 83,294 - - 83,294 83,294
Equipment, Vehicles and

Computer Software 336,684 103,283 138,688 138,571 475,372 241,854
Infrastructure - - 4,005,063 3,823,201 4,005,063 3,823,201
Construction-In-Progress 126,003 275,492 10,768 15,672 136,771 291,164

$3,761,862 $3,768,563 $4,595,954 $4,402,702 $8,357,816 $8,171,265

Long-Term Debt

The State uses general obligation debt to finance capital projects. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the State had total general obligation bond debt outstanding of $1,955.8 million backed by
the full faith and credit of the State. The State’s debt burden reflects its centralized role in financing
facilities, including school construction projects. As of June 30, 2017, $496.6 million, or 25.4%,
of the State’s outstanding debt was issued on behalf of local school districts. Local school districts
transferred $64.8 million of property tax revenue to the State to cover related debt service during
fiscal year 2017.

The State has no constitutional debt limits. However, in 1991, the State enacted legislation that
limits debt issuance with a three-part test as follows:

A 5% test restricts new debt authorization to 5% of budgetary general fund revenue as
projected by the Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (DEFAC) in June
for the next fiscal year. Should actual revenue collections increase during the year, no
additional authorizations are made. For fiscal year 2017, debt authorization was limited to
$202.4 million.

A 15% test restricts debt issuance if the annual payments on all outstanding debt exceed
15% of estimated budgetary general fund and Transportation Trust Fund Revenue for the
next fiscal year. Currently, these annual payments represent approximately 8% of
estimated general fund and Transportation Trust Fund revenues.

Finally, a cash balance test restricts debt issuance if the debt service payment in any year
exceeds the estimated cumulative cash balance for the following fiscal year. For fiscal year
2017, the projected cash balance exceeded debt service.

Due to the State’s statutory debt limits and its fiscal management, three principal rating agencies,
Moody’s Investor’s Service, Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor’s, reaffirmed their triple-A ratings
on the State’s general obligation bonds during fiscal year 2017. On March 9, 2017, the State issued
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$225.0 million of general obligation bonds maturing between March 1, 2018 and March 1, 2037.
The bonds bear coupons between 3.125% and 5.0% and yield between 0.80% and 3.39%.
Proceeds were used to fund various capital projects as authorized by the General Assembly.
Subsequent to year-end, on December 14, 2017, the State issued $114.8 million of general
obligation bonds to advance refund previously issued bonds.

In addition, the Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. (SEU) had $47.0 million of Revenue Bonds, Series
2011 outstanding as of June 30, 2017. These bonds were used to support general government
initiatives and have been used to finance construction on energy efficient upgrades to facilities in
the State. As such, that debt is reflected in the primary government statements as governmental
activities. The bonds are secured by appropriations of the state organizations that are participating
in the SEU program, but are not an obligation of the State.

Debt issued by the Delaware Transportation Authority does not constitute a debt of the State or a
pledge of its general taxing power or of its full faith and credit. Rather, the outstanding revenue
bonds are obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge and assignment
of certain tolls and revenues such as motor fuel tax revenues, motor vehicle document fees and
motor vehicle registrations. The Authority issued $107.0 million of Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 to provide funding for projects and an advance refunding of
previously issued bonds. The Delaware Transportation Authority has revenue bonds outstanding
of $982.9 million to support its ongoing capital transportation program which includes $72.3
million in Grant Anticipation Vehicle Bonds (GARVEEzs), to finance a portion of the costs of
completing the final design and right-of-way acquisition for a new U.S. 301.

Additional information on the State of Delaware’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 8, 9, and
10 on pages 78 — 90 and Note 23 on page 128 of this report.

Financial Management

The State’s financial management continues to be recognized by the premier credit rating from all
three principal rating agencies: Aaa from Moody’s Investor’s Service, AAA from Fitch Ratings
and AAA from Standard & Poor’s. The ratings reflect Delaware’s financial management practices
that have become institutionalized within the State:

e Expenditure budgeting of 98% of available budgetary general fund revenue;

e Budgetary general fund revenue forecasts that are frequent, objective and often
conservative;

e Three-part debt affordability test that limits debt authorization to 5% of budgetary general
fund revenue; debt service to 15% of tax supported revenue; and the cash balance test;

e Consistent satisfaction of the State’s budget reserve requirement — the State’s rainy day
fund has never fallen below its mandated 5% of general fund revenue; and

e Adequate funding of its pension plan.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

DEFAC met on June 19, 2017 to prepare the final revenue and expenditure estimates upon which
the fiscal year 2018 operating and capital budgets would be based. Forecasters suggest moderate
growth with employment growing slightly below expected national levels. Tax policy changes,
which include increases in corporate franchise taxes, cigarette and alcohol taxes and realty transfer
taxes, are favorable for fiscal 2018 revenue.

The fiscal year 2018 operating and capital budgets meet budgetary spending limitations imposed
by law. The fiscal year 2018 operating budget is $4,144.2 million, just 0.3% more than fiscal year
2017 and was based on the fiscal 2018 revenue resolution passed by the General Assembly in the
amount of $4,228.8 million. The fiscal year 2018 operating budget included $37.2 million in
appropriations to the Grant-in-Aid bill, a decrease of 19.0% over the fiscal year 2017 budget. No
operating cash was allocated to the capital budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the State’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to the
Department of Finance, Division of Accounting, 820 Silver Lake Boulevard, Suite 200, Silver
Lake Plaza, Dover, Delaware 19904 or visit our website at http://accounting.delaware.gov.

The State’s component units publish their own separately issued audited financial statements.
These statements may be obtained from their respective administrative offices.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Pooled Investments

Receivables, Net

Interfund Balances

Inventories

Prepaid Items

Investments

Other Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Pooled Investments
Deposit on Hold with Trustee
Restricted Investments
Net Pension Asset
Other Restricted Assets

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
Advances from Federal Government
Net Pension Liability
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted For:
Debt Service
Federal and State Regulations
Bond Covenants
Unemployment Benefits
Loan Program
Other Purposes

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Discretely
Primary Government Presented
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 22,081 $ 194,028 $ 216,109 $ 51,324
1,298,352 10,435 1,308,787 76,589
684,944 94,227 779,171 360,149
(19,180) 19,180 - -
5,109 19,511 24,620 1,111
- - - 5,370
76,732 180,733 257,465 404,054
- 2,410 2,410 1,986
712,836 - 712,836 12,603
115 - 115 -
- 200,854 200,854 35,106
33 - 33 -
- - - 2,155
696,306 4,348,229 5,044,535 377,268
3,065,556 247,725 3,313,281 601,114
3,761,862 4,595,954 8,357,816 978,382
6,542,884 5,317,332 11,860,216 1,928,829
756,874 68,824 825,698 61,731
728,266 108,732 836,998 14,000
55,237 11,735 66,972 25,520
33,775 16,623 50,398 3,036
2,096 - 2,096 2,440
- 8,691 8,691 -
5,793 - 5,793 -
1,807,317 61,301 1,868,618 99,354
375,237 91,504 466,741 20,564
5,394,289 1,261,907 6,656,196 594,179
8,402,010 1,560,493 9,962,503 759,093
72,925 22,316 95,241 4,745
1,476,850 3,619,968 5,096,818 668,728
- 177,527 177,527 -
970,545 - 970,545 401,290
- - - 53,484
- 143,430 143,430 -
- - - 44,720
- - - 31,112
(3,622,572) (137,578) (3,760,150) 27,388
$ (1,175,177) $ 3,803,347 $ 2,628,170 $ 1,226,722

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Expressed in Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenues and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position Discretely
Grants and Contributions Primary Government Presented
Charges for Governmental Business-type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Operating Capital Activities Activities Total Units
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Governmental Services $ 1,167,143 $ 366,922 $ 27,043 $ - $ (773,178)  $ - $ (773,178)  $ -
Health and Children's Services 3,259,908 91,413 1,822,002 - (1,346,493) - (1,346,493) -
Judicial and Public Safety 753,778 77,344 34,504 - (641,930) - (641,930) -
Natural Resources and Environmental Control 164,879 63,920 44,651 - (56,308) - (56,308) -
Labor 93,510 28,010 39,727 - (25,773) - (25,773) -
Education 2,799,115 28,982 234,006 - (2,536,127) - (2,536,127) -
Interest on Long-term Debt 62,815 - - - (62,815) - (62,815) -
Total Governmental Activities 8,301,148 656,591 2,201,933 - (5,442,624) - (5,442,624) -
Business-type Activities:
Lottery 383,270 627,984 - - - 244,714 244,714 -
DelDOT 671,765 581,222 206,752 - - 116,209 116,209 -
Unemployment 62,249 93,129 586 - - 31,466 31,466 -
Total Business-type Activities 1,117,284 1,302,335 207,338 - - 392,389 392,389 -
Total Primary Government $ 9,418,432 $ 1,958,926 $ 2,409,271 $ - (5,442,624) 392,389 (5,050,235) -
Discretely Presented Component Units:
Delaware State Housing Authority $ 101,197 $ 29,388 $ 91,867 $ 447 - - - 20,505
Diamond State Port Corporation 42,653 37,303 - 19,643 - - - 14,293
Riverfront Development Corporation 9,601 3,591 - 7,085 - - - 1,075
Delaware State University 142,504 81,260 10,771 9,190 - - - (41,283)
Delaware Charter Schools 192,992 3,567 17,280 4,565 - - - (167,580)
Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation 776 425 3,276 345 - - - 3,270
Total Discretely Presented Component Units $ 489,723 $ 155,534 $ 123,194 $ 41,275 - - - (169,720)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Personal Income 1,180,975 - 1,180,975 -
Business 2,281,220 - 2,281,220 -
Real Estate 625,903 - 625,903 -
Other 256,998 - 256,998 -
Unrestricted Payments from Primary Government - - - 202,447
Investment Income 18,237 2,858 21,095 4,345
Miscellaneous 20,109 - 20,109 4,357
Transfers In (Out) 245,922 (245,922) - -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 4,629,364 (243,064) 4,386,300 211,149
Changes in Net Position (813,260) 149,325 (663,935) 41,429
Net Position - Beginning As Restated (Note 1) (361,917) 3,654,022 3,292,105 1,185,293
Net Position - Ending $ (1,175,177)  $ 3,803,347 $ 2,628,170 $ 1,226,722

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



STATE OF DELAWARE
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Local School Capital Governmental
General Federal Districts Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,385 $ 665 $ 8,031 $ - $ 22,081
Cash and Pooled Investments 1,528,149 - 303,242 179,797 2,011,188
Deposit on Hold with Trustee 115 - - - 115
Investments 76,589 - 143 - 76,732
Accounts Receivable, Net 63,734 33,197 171 - 97,102
Taxes Receivable, Net 65,293 - 44,175 - 109,468
Intergovernmental
Receivables, Net - 160,518 - - 160,518
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net 25,014 292,842 - - 317,856
Due from Other Funds 21,995 - - - 21,995
Inventories 5,109 - - - 5,109
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,799,383 $ 487222 $ 355,762 $ 179,797 $ 2,822,164
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 532,779 $ 150,005 $ 27,083 $ 18,399 $ 728,266
Accrued Liabilities 55,237 - - - 55,237
Other Liabilities 1,351 - - - 1,351
Escheat Liability 577,500 - - - 577,500
Due to Other Funds 20,125 21,050 - - 41,175
Advances from Federal Government - 5,793 - - 5,793
Unearned Revenue 2,096 - - - 2,096
Total Liabilities 1,189,088 176,848 27,083 18,399 1,411,418
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 75,718 17,532 42,171 - 135,421
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 27,729 - - - 27,729
Restricted 229,797 292,842 286,508 161,398 970,545
Committed 152,451 - - - 152,451
Assigned 113,197 - - - 113,197
Unassigned 11,403 - - - 11,403
Total Fund Balances 534,577 292,842 286,508 161,398 1,275,325
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCE $ 1,799,383 $ 487222 $ 355,762 $ 179,797 $ 2,822,164

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 22



STATE OF DELAWARE

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Net pension asset available to fund future pension obligations

Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These assets consist of:

Land

Land Improvements

Buildings

Easements

Equipment, Vehicles and Software

Construction in Progress

Deferred outflows of resources related to the pension contribution,
changes in proportion, and investment differences

Deferred inflows of resources related to:

Revenues that will be collected after year-end, but are not
available to pay for the current period's expenditures
Pension investment differences and changes in proportion
Deferred gains on refunding of bonds

Certain liabilities net of related assets are not due and payable in the
current period and are not reported in the fund balance sheet. These
liabilities consist of:

Interest Payable

Claims and Judgments (Current and Long-term)

Compensated Absences (Current and Long-term)

Other Post Employment Benefits

Pollution Remediation Obligations (Current and Long-term)

Notes Payable

Net Pension Liability

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Related Accounts

Other Long-term Obligations

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

487,009
171,246
2,557,626
83,294
336,684
126,003

135,421
(39,907)
(33,018)

(33,775)
(182,061)
(174,055)

(2,556,123)
(23,158)
(24,503)

(1,807,317)

(2,227,491)

(3,284)

$ 1,275,325

33

3,761,862

756,874

62,496

(7,031,767)

S (L175,177)
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Revenues
Personal Taxes
Business Taxes
Other Tax Revenue
Licenses, Fees, Permits and Fines
Rentals and Sales
Grants
Interest and Other Investment Income
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Health and Children's Services
Judicial and Public Safety
Natural Resources and
Environmental Control
Labor
Education
Unrestricted Payments to
Component Unit - Education

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Costs of Issuance of Debt

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Sources (Uses) of
Financial Resources
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Issuance of General
Obligation Bonds
Premiums on Bond Sales

Total Other Sources
(Uses) of Financial

Resources

Net Change in Fund
Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Local School Capital Governmental

General Federal District Fund Projects Funds
$ 1,180,975 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,180,975
2,280,255 - - - 2,280,255
256,995 - 626,870 - 883,865
411,840 - 3,173 - 415,013
115,869 - 9,008 - 124,877
34,057 2,164,853 4,297 - 2,203,207
13,400 - 4,764 - 18,164
264,489 - (2,695) - 261,794
4,557,880 2,164,853 645,417 - 7,368,150
963,828 16,834 - - 980,662
1,467,189 1,775,117 - - 3,242,306
649,742 33,032 - - 682,774
135,337 27,457 - - 162,794
53,028 36,452 - - 89,480
1,571,414 216,832 541,966 - 2,330,212
152,696 - 49,751 - 202,447
- - - 264,475 264,475
176,559 - - - 176,559
82,291 - - - 82,291
973 - - - 973
5,253,057 2,105,724 591,717 264,475 8,214,973
(695,177) 59,129 53,700 (264,475) (846,823)
426,270 - 85,986 - 512,256
(95,405) (47,976) (121,950) (1,003) (266,334)
- - - 225,000 225,000
- - - 24,108 24,108
330,865 (47,976) (35,964) 248,105 495,030
(364,312) 11,153 17,736 (16,370) (351,793)
898,889 281,689 268,772 177,768 1,627,118
$§ 534,577 § 292,842 $ 286,508 § 161,398 $ 1,275,325

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
RECONCILIATION OF THE NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENT FUNDS TO CHANGE IN NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as

expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital Outlays 144,608
Depreciation Expense (144,464)
Loss on Disposal of Assets (6,845)

Change in other assets held for sale which are not financial
resources therefore are not reported in the funds

Changes in revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources and are not reported as
revenues in the funds.

Net change in the deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the pension
contribution, changes in proportion and investment
differences.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources

to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases

long-term liabilities in the statement of net position

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in

the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces

long-term liabilities in the statement of net position

Components of the debt related adjustments consist of’
Debt Service Principal Repayments (net of

sinking fund in the amount of $72) 175,050

New Debt Issued (Face Value) (225,000)
Premium Received on General Obligation Bonds (24,108)
Amortization of Premiums on Bonds 18,711
Amortization of Gain on Refunding of Debt 3,143

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities

do not require the use of current financial resources and

therefore, the changes in these liabilities are not

reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
Accrued Interest Expense (2,378)
Claims and Judgments (6,223)
Compensated Absences (3,140)
Other Post Employment Benefits (293,012)
Pollution Remediation Obligation 8,886
Net Pension Liability (804,630)
Notes Payable 1,436
Other Liabilities (66)

$

(351,793)

(6,701)

(6,500)

(27,232)

730,297

(52,204)

(1,099,127)

Change in Net Position in the Statement of Activities

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

$

(813,260)
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STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 125,473 $ 2,048 $ 66,507 $ 194,028
Cash and Pooled Investments - 1,744 8,691 10,435
Accounts Receivable, Net 13,073 7,920 21,709 42,702
Taxes Receivable, Net 33,326 - - 33,326
Intergovernmental Receivables, Net - - 17,477 17,477
Interest Receivable - - 722 722
Inventories - - 19,511 19,511
Due from Other Funds - 5,386 14,739 20,125
Other Assets - - 145 145
Investments:
Unrestricted - - 179,829 179,829
Restricted - 20 112,034 112,054
Total Current Assets 171,872 17,118 441,364 630,354
Noncurrent Assets:
Investments:
Unrestricted - - 904 904
Restricted - - 88,800 88,800
Other Assets - 2,265 - 2,265
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, Non-depreciable - - 4,348,229 4,348,229
Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net - - 247,725 247,725
Total Capital Assets, Net - - 4,595,954 4,595,954
Total Noncurrent Assets - 2,265 4,685,658 4,687,923
Total Assets 171,872 19,383 5,127,022 5,318,277
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - 1,045 67,779 68,824
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 28,442 5,066 75,224 108,732
Accrued Liabilities - 4,721 7,014 11,735
Escrow Deposits - - 8,691 8,691
Interest Payable - - 16,623 16,623
Due to Other Funds - 945 - 945
Pollution Remediation Obligation - - 741 741
Claims and Judgements - - 2,531 2,531
Compensated Absences - - 1,977 1,977
Revenue Bonds - - 86,255 86,255
Total Current Liabilities 28,442 10,732 199,056 238,230
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefits - 4,327 262,542 266,869
Pollution Remediation Obligation - - 342 342
Claims and Judgements - - 6,920 6,920
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets - 2,265 - 2,265
Net Pension Liability - 2,000 59,301 61,301
Compensated Absences - - 9,711 9,711
Revenue Bonds - - 975,800 975,800
Total Noncurrent Liabilities - 8,592 1,314,616 1,323,208
Total Liabilities 28,442 19,324 1,513,672 1,561,438
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - 104 22,212 22,316
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets - - 3,619,968 3,619,968
Restricted for:
Debt Service - - 177,527 177,527
Unemployment Benefits 143,430 - - 143,430
Unrestricted - 1,000 (138,578) (137,578)
Total Net Position $ 143,430 $ 1,000 $ 3,658,917 $ 3,803,347

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total
Operating Revenues:
Unemployment Taxes-State Funded $ 93,129 § - 8 - 93,129
Gaming Revenue - 627,984 - 627,984
Pledged Revenues:
Turnpike Revenue - - 136,158 136,158
Motor Vehicle and Related Revenue - - 343,128 343,128
Turnpike Revenue - - 61,267 61,267
Passenger Fares - - 17,570 17,570
Miscellaneous - - 21,484 21,484
Total Operating Revenues 93,129 627,984 579,607 1,300,720
Operating Expenses:
Unemployment Benefits - State Funded 61,700 - - 61,700
Unemployment Benefits - Federal Funded 549 - - 549
Cost of Sales - 236,592 - 236,592
Prizes - 134,956 - 134,956
Transportation - - 620,676 620,676
Depreciation - - 29,641 29,641
General and Administrative - 10,722 - 10,722
Total Operating Expenses 62,249 382,270 650,317 1,094,836
Operating Income (Loss) 30,880 245,714 (70,710) 205,884
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 2,509 - 349 2,858
Interest Expense - - (21,448) (21,448)
Grants 586 - 206,752 207,338
Other Revenue - - 1,615 1,615
Contributions to Thoroughbred Program - (1,000) - (1,000)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) 3,095 (1,000) 187,268 189,363
Income Before Transfers 33,975 244,714 116,558 395,247
Transfers In - - 9,419 9,419
Transfers Out - (244,714) (10,627) (255,341)
Increase in Net Position 33,975 - 115,350 149,325
Net Position - Beginning 109,455 1,000 3,543,567 3,654,022
Net Position - Ending $ 143,430 $ 1,000 $ 3,6580917 3,803,347

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF DELAWARE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Employers $ 94,975 $ - $ 578,657 $ 673,632
Receipts from Customers and Users - 626,241 2,976 629,217
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services - (45,246) (407,708) (452,954)
Payments to Employees for Services - (5,736) (189,711) (195,447)
Payments for Insurance Claims (60,248) - (5,347) (65,595)
Payments for Prizes - (134,833) - (134,833)
Payment for Commissions - (196,314) - (196,314)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 34,727 244,112 (21,133) 257,706
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Receipts from Federal Government 586 - 8,157 8,743
Payment on Other Grants - (1,000) (5,916) (6,916)
Interest Paid on Advances - - - -
State of Delaware Loan Repaid (15,000) - - (15,000)
Transfers In - - 9,419 9,419
Transfers Out - (245,271) (10,627) (255,898)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (14,414) (246,271) 1,033 (259,652)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital Grants - - 216,108 216,108
Purchases of Capital Assets - - (214,286) (214,286)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt - - (70,595) (70,595)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt - - (45,103) (45,103)
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt - - 115,599 115,599
Debt Refunding Paid to Escrow Agent - - (40,759) (40,759)
Net Cash Provided(Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities - - (39,036) (39,036)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Investment Revenues 2,509 - 2,057 4,566
Collection on Bad Debt - - 999 999
Escrow Deposits Received - - 111 111
Purchase of Investments - - (3,664,565) (3,664,565)
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments - 30 3,660,614 3,660,644
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 2,509 30 (784) 1,755
Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments 22,822 (2,129) (59,920) (39,227)
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments- Beginning of Year 102,651 5,921 135,118 243,690
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments - End of Year $ 125,473 $ 3,792 $ 75,198 $ 204,463

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 30,880 $ 245714 $ (70,710) $ 205,884
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense - - 29,641 29,641
Effect of Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables, Net 1,845 (1,742) 3,689 3,792
Inventories - - (339) (339)
Prepaid Items - - (80) (80)

Net Pension Adjustment - - 2,814 2,814
Due to/from General Fund - - (7,217) (7,217)
Accounts and Other Payables (2,105) 17 (2,173) (4,261)

Accrued Liabilities 4,107 - (3,215) 892

Accrued Expenses - 123 - 123

Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses - - 161 161
Post-Employment Benefits - - 26,296 26,296

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 34,727 $ 244,112 N (21,133) $ 257,706

Schedule of Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers In $ - $ - $ - S -
Transfers Out - 557 - 557

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



STATE OF DELAWARE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension & Investment
OPEB Trusts Trust Agency
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 349,307 $ 1,839 $ 29,004
Cash and Pooled Investments 16,597 - 72,304
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 13,842 60 -
Investment Sales Pending 26,250 119 -
Employer Contributions 23,566 - -
Member Contributions 4,340 - -
Other Receivables - - 5,484
Investments, at Fair Value:
Domestic Fixed Income 1,141,561 10,797 -
Domestic Equities 2,223,747 15,480 -
Pooled Equity and Fixed Income 3,283,524 14,742 -
Alternative Investments 2,144,909 9,686 -
Short Term Investments - - 1,795
Foreign Fixed Income 97,378 439 -
Foreign Equities 561,997 5,381 -
Total Assets 9,887,018 58,543 $ 108,587
Liabilities:
Investment Purchase Payable 45,724 206 $ -
Benefits/Claims Payable 17,874 - -
Accrued Investment Expense 3,981 18 -
Accrued Administrative Expenses 312 - -
Funds Held in Escrow - - 108,587
Total Liabilities 67,891 224 $ 108,587
Net Position:
Net Position Restricted for Pensions 9,463,913 -
Net Position Held in Trust for OPEB Benefits 355,214 -
Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Participants - 58,319
Total Net Position $ 9,819,127 $ 58,319
See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 29



STATE OF DELAWARE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Contributions:
Employer Contributions

Transfer of Contributions from Post-Retirement Increase Fund

Transfer of Assets from Outside the System
Member Contributions

Total Contributions

Investments:
Investment Earnings
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments

Total Investment Earnings (Loss)

Less Investment Manager/Advisor/Custody Fees
Less Investment Administrative Expenses

Net Investment Earnings (Loss)

Securities Lending Income

Securities Lending Expense

Total Net Securities Lending Income

Total Additions

Deductions:
Transfer of Assets from Post-Retirement Increase Fund
Transfer of Assets from Outside the System
Pension/Claim Payments
Refunds of Contributions to Members
Burial Benefit Payments
Administrative Expenses

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Pension & Investment
OPEB Trusts Trust

$ 506,487 -

31,137 -

3,421 785

85,576 -

626,621 785

159,801 1,066

851,881 5,100

1,011,682 6,166
(23,587) (111)

(762) -

987,333 6,055

1,366 5

(205) -

1,161 5

1,615,115 6,845
31,137 -

445 12,965

877,803 -

6,331 -

5,932 -

6,175 1

927,823 12,966
687,292 (6,121)
9,131,835 64,440

$ 9.819,127 58,319

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Pooled Investments
Accounts and Other Receivables, Net
Loans and Notes Receivable, Net
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Investments
Other Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Investments
Other Restricted Assets
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets - Depreciable, Net

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue
Net Pension Liability
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Federal and State Regulations
Bond Covenants
Loan Program
Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

STATE OF DELAWARE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2017

(Expressed in Thousands)

Delaware
Agricultural
Delaware Diamond State Riverfront Delaware Lands
State Housing Port Development State Delaware Preservation
Authority Corporation Corporation University Charter Schools Foundation Total

$ 42,045 $ 4,755 $ 170 $ 2,519 $ 1,835 $ - 51,324
16,344 - 5 5,392 51,167 3,681 76,589
59,525 2,160 1,225 9,753 7,403 138 80,204
271,238 - 1,595 - - 7,112 279,945
- 1,111 - - - - 1,111
3,876 860 84 - 550 - 5,370
382,136 - - 14,716 7,202 - 404,054
- - 68 1,260 546 112 1,986
1,053 4,720 - 3911 2,919 - 12,603
- 11,432 - 19,245 4,429 - 35,106
- - - 2,155 - - 2,155
3,309 63,845 22,959 8,909 42,076 236,170 377,268
9,964 151,096 89,523 227,036 123,495 - 601,114
13,273 214,941 112,482 235,945 165,571 236,170 978,382
789,490 239,979 115,629 294,896 241,622 247,213 1,928,829
456 3,302 198 21,104 36,622 49 61,731
843 295 494 4,406 7,956 6 14,000
4 3,014 304 3,467 18,711 20 25,520
- 138 - 1,232 1,666 - 3,036
- 39 488 1,771 142 - 2,440
571 5,975 174 38,263 54,296 75 99,354
6,012 1,450 5,267 4,405 3,430 - 20,564
280,196 23,228 13,682 118,551 158,522 - 594,179
287,626 34,139 20,409 172,095 244,723 101 759,093
429 728 21 1,830 1,734 3 4,745
13,273 190,417 93,883 122,499 12,486 236,170 668,728
374,031 16,153 - 118 - 10,988 401,290
53,484 - - - - - 53,484
44,720 - - 44,720
- - - 21,458 9,654 - 31,112
16,383 1,844 1,514 (2,000) 9,647 - 27,388
$ 501,891 $ 208,414 $ 95,397 $ 142,075 $ 31,787 247,158 1,226,722

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Discretely Presented Components Units

Delaware State Housing Authority

Diamond State Port Corporation

Riverfront Development Corporation

Delaware State University

Delaware Charter Schools

Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation

General Revenues
Unrestricted Payments from Primary Government
Investment Income
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning As Restated (Note 1)

Net Position - Ending

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

STATE OF DELAWARE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Expressed in Thousands)

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Program Income Delaware Diamond Delaware
Grants and Contributions State State Riverfront Delaware Delaware Agricultural
Charges for Housing Port Development State Charter Lands Preservation
Expenses Services Operating Capital Authority Corporation Corporation University Schools Foundation Total
101,197 $ 29,388 $ 91,867 447 $ 20,505 N - $ - $ - 8 - $ - $ 20,505
42,653 37,303 - 19,643 - 14,293 - - - - 14,293
9,601 3,591 - 7,085 - - 1,075 - - - 1,075
142,504 81,260 10,771 9,190 - - - (41,283) - - (41,283)
192,992 3,567 17,280 4,565 - - - - (167,580) - (167,580)
776 425 3,276 345 - - - - - 3,270 3,270
489,723 $ 155534 $ 123,194 41,275 20,505 14,293 1,075 (41,283) (167,580) 3,270 (169,720)
- - - 35,857 166,590 - 202,447
- 89 - 3,424 825 7 4,345
- - - - 4,357 4,357
- 89 - 39,281 171,772 7 211,149
20,505 14,382 1,075 (2,002) 4,192 3,277 41,429
481,386 194,032 94,322 144,077 27,595 243,881 1,185,293
$ 501,891 $ 208,414 $ 95,397 $ 142,075 $ 31,787 $ 247,158 $ 1,226,722
See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 32



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2017

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Delaware (the State) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

(a) Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the State’s primary government and include
all funds, offices of elected officials, departments and organizations, bureaus, boards,
commissions, and authorities that comprise the State’s legal entity. Also included in the State’s
primary government are the State’s 16 local school districts and 3 vo-tech schools (collectively
referred to as the local school districts). The local school districts have separately elected
boards, but they have not been specifically granted power by legislation to be legally
separate. Based on the powers and authority granted in Title 14 of the State of Delaware code,
the primary government holds sufficient power and responsibility that the local school districts
have been accounted for as not being legally separate and as a result have been reported in the
primary government. The financial activity of the local school districts is reported in the
General Fund, Local School District Fund (for real estate taxes levied by the Schools), Federal
Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund.

The Delaware Technical and Community College (DTCC) was established by 14 Del. C. 91
as a state organization to operate or make available public institutions of learning for persons
who have graduated from high school or who are unable to attend public high schools and offer
a 2-year college parallel program or associate degree program. The Governor with the consent
of the Senate appoints all seven members of the Board of Trustees. DTCC is considered part
of the primary government and its activity is shown in the Education function in the General
Fund, Federal Fund and Capital Projects Fund of the primary government.

The DelDOT enterprise fund is also included in the reporting entity of the primary government.
DelDOT has the overall responsibility for coordinating and developing transportation policies
for the state along with the maintenance and operation of roadways and bridges that fall under
its jurisdiction. To assist DelDOT in their mission, the State and DelDOT created the Delaware
Transportation Authority (the Authority), which includes the activities of the Transportation
Trust Fund (the Trust Fund) and the Delaware Transit Corporation (DTC). The Authority is a
body politic and corporate whose actions are overseen by the Secretary of Transportation, the
Director of the Office of Management and Budget, and the Administrator of the Trust Fund.
The Authority’s principal role is to provide financing to DelDOT and as a result is a blended
component unit of DelDOT.

Fiduciary funds, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the State’s
operations. The State’s reporting entity also comprises its component units, entities for which
the State is considered either financially accountable or the nature and the significance of their
relationship with the State are such that exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements
to be misleading. Blended component units are reported within the primary government.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-
wide financial statements (see note below for description) to emphasize that such are legally
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State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2017

separate from the State.

The decision to include and how to report a component unit in the State’s reporting entity is
based on several criteria, including legal standing, debt responsibility, fiscal dependency, and
financial accountability. The State is financially accountable for legally separate organizations
if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board and (1) it is able to impose its will
on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State. The State may also be financially
accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the State and there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the State,
regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing board, a governing
board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board.

Blended Component Units

The Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (DPERS) is a public employee
retirement system, which covers substantially all State employees. The DPERS is a legally
separate entity. DPERS’ Board is comprised of five members appointed by the Governor and
confirmed by the State Senate, plus two ex-officio members. It provides services and benefits
almost exclusively to the primary government, and it is considered a blended fiduciary fund
component unit and is shown in the financial statements as part of the primary government as
a pension trust fund. The financial report of DPERS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
may be obtained at www.delawarepensions.com or by writing to the State Board of Pension
Trustees and Office of Pensions, McArdle Building, Suite 1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard,
Dover, Delaware 19904-2402.

The Delaware Other Post-Employment Benefits Fund Trust (OPEB Trust) is a trust which
provides retirement medical coverage to pensioners and their eligible dependents in the State’s
Employees’, Judiciary, New State Police, and Closed State Police Pension Plans. The OPEB
Trust is a legally separate entity and by legislative code the Board of DPERS serves as the
Board of the OPEB Trust. It provides services and benefits almost exclusively to the primary
government and its component units and affiliated agencies. The OPEB Trust is considered a
blended fiduciary fund component unit and is shown in the financial statements as part of the
primary government as the OPEB Trust Fund.

The Delaware Economic Development Authority (DEDA) was established by 29 Del. C. 50,
Subchapter IV as a legally separate entity to assist the State in the financing of citizens and
activities of exempt persons in order to contribute to the prosperity, health, and general welfare
of the citizens of the State by acting as the financing vehicle. DEDA is considered to be a
blended component unit due to the board being the same as the primary government. It is
funded almost exclusively by State appropriations and is under the direction of the Governor-
appointed director who guides the operations of the State employees. It is reported as part of
the General Government in the General Fund of the primary government.

The Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. (SEU) is a legally separate 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organization, which was established to reduce energy waste and foster a sustainable energy
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future for the State. The Governor appoints seven of the eleven members. It provides benefits
almost exclusively to the primary government by developing and coordinating programs for
the purpose of promoting sustainable use of energy by State departments and organizations.
The SEU is considered a blended component unit and is shown as part of the Natural Resources
and Environmental Control function in the General Fund of the primary government.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The following component units are entities that are legally separate from the State, but are
financially accountable to the State for reporting purposes or whose relationship with the State
is such that exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements to be misleading. The
discretely presented component units’ column of the basic financial statements includes the
financial data of these entities. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30, 2017
fiscal year-end.

Complete financial statements for each of the discretely presented component units may be
obtained from their respective administrative offices.

Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

The Delaware State Housing Authority is a public corporation whose Director is appointed by
the Governor with the consent of the State Senate and serves at the Governor’s pleasure. The
DSHA is governed by the Council on Housing whose eleven members are appointed by the
Governor. The DSHA administers the role of providing affordable housing as a key aspect of
State policy. The State provides both General Fund appropriations and capital funding to assist
DSHA in its mission. Certain transactions of the DSHA require the approval of the primary
government. The DSHA is authorized, among other things, to (1) make mortgage, construction
and other loans to not-for-profit and limited for-profit housing sponsors; (2) make loans to
mortgage lenders, requiring the proceeds thereof to be used for making newly qualified
residential mortgage loans; (3) purchase qualified mortgage loans from mortgage lenders; and
(4) apply for and receive assistance and subsidies under programs from the federal government
and others.

Diamond State Port Corporation (DSPC)

The Diamond State Port Corporation was organized as a body corporate and politic constituting
a public instrumentality of the State. The DSPC is empowered to operate, improve and
maintain the Port of Wilmington and related facilities. The Governor appoints eight of the
fifteen members of the board of directors, with the advice and consent of the Senate. Certain
transactions of the DSPC require the approval of the primary government.

Riverfront Development Corporation (RDC)
The Riverfront Development Corporation was formed to plan, develop and manage programs

and projects intended to foster economic development along the Brandywine and Christina
Rivers. The Governor appoints seven of the eighteen board members; however, seven of the
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remaining eleven directors consist of the Governor and six State officials. Authorization by the
State’s Budget Director and Controller General is required before funds of the RDC may be
expended, which indicates imposition of will.

Delaware State University (DSU)

Delaware State University is a public institution of higher education. Funding is primarily
through State appropriations. State appropriations, without restrictions as to use by DSU are
reported in general revenue. Additional funding is derived from tuition, federal grants, private
donations and grants. The Board of Trustees is comprised of fifteen members, eight appointed
by the Governor of Delaware and seven elected by the Trustees. The President of DSU and the
Governor of the State of Delaware serve as ex-officio members of the Board. Delaware State
University financial data includes its component unit, the Delaware State University
Foundation, Inc. The State annually appropriates funding for DSU, which totaled $35.9
million in fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, which is twenty-six percent of DSU’s total
revenues.

Delaware Charter Schools

The State’s 25 Charter Schools are public schools funded primarily through State
appropriations. Additional funding is derived from federal grants passed through from the
primary government, private donations and funds received from local school districts on a tax
portion per child basis. State funding for the Charter Schools totaled $166.6 million for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 which represents over eighty-four percent of the Charter
Schools’ total revenues. Each Charter School is a separate legal entity managed by its own
separate board of directors and operates independently under a charter granted by the State
Department of Education with the approval of the State Board of Education. Charters are
granted for an initial period of three years and renewable every five years thereafter. Charter
Schools issue their own debt but are dependent on the State for their primary funding. Financial
information for Delaware Charter Schools is presented in the aggregate as they are individually
immaterial to the State’s basic financial statements but each represents a discretely presented
component unit.

Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation (DALPF)

The Delaware Agricultural Lands Preservation Foundation was established to provide
comprehensive agricultural lands preservation programs to serve the long-term needs of the
agriculture community and the citizens of Delaware. State appropriations fund DALPF for
their specific programs. DALPF is comprised of twelve trustees and the Governor of the State
of Delaware appoints ten of them. DALPF shall continue until its existence is terminated by
law, whereby all of its rights, properties and liabilities shall pass to and be assumed by the
State.

Related Organizations

Organizations in which the State appoints the voting majority of the board but the State is not
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financially accountable for the organizations are considered related organizations.

The Delaware Solid Waste Authority (DSWA) is a legally separate entity and the primary
government appoints all seven members of its governing board. The primary government’s
accountability for DSWA does not extend beyond making the appointments. The DSWA is
responsible for implementing solid waste disposal, recycling, and resource recovery systems,
facilities and services for the State of Delaware. The financial activities of DSWA are not
included in the State’s financial statements.

The Delaware Health Facilities Authority (DHFA) was established by 16 Del. C.92 for the
benefit of the people of the State, the increase of their commerce, welfare and prosperity and
the improvement of their health and living conditions and provides a measure of assistance and
an alternative method to enable facilities to provide structures needed to accomplish this
purpose. All of the seven members of the board are appointed by the Governor. The primary
government’s accountability for DHFA does not extend beyond making the appointments.
The financial activities of DHFA are not included in the State’s financial statements.

Complete financial statements for each of the related organizations may be obtained from their
respective administrative offices.

Jointly Governed Organization

The Delaware River and Bay Authority (DRBA), a body politic, was created with the intention
of advancing the economic growth and development of those areas in the State of Delaware
and the State of New Jersey, which border the Delaware River and Delaware Bay. DRBA is
governed by twelve commissioners: six appointed by the State of Delaware and six appointed
by the State of New Jersey. DRBA is autonomous from a day-to-day operations perspective
and neither State is obligated for the DRBA’s debt. DRBA is not included in the basic financial
statements as the State of Delaware has no ongoing financial interest or financial responsibility.
Complete financial statements for the DRBA may be obtained from its administrative office.

Other Organization

The Governor appoints eight members of the governing board of the University of Delaware
(the University). The remaining twenty members are elected separately. Since the primary
government’s accountability does not extend beyond State grants to the University and there
is a lack of fiscal dependency, the financial activities of the University are not included in the
State’s basic financial statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
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to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
separately presented from certain legally separate component units for which the State is
financially accountable.

The statement of net position measures not just current assets and liabilities, but also long-term
assets and liabilities such as capital assets (including infrastructure assets) and general long-
term debt. The difference between the State’s assets, deferred outflows of resources and its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is its net position. Net position is displayed in three
components — net investment in capital assets (capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and related debt); restricted; and unrestricted. Net position is restricted when constraints are
placed that are either externally imposed or are imposed by constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally it is the State’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items properly excluded among program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are
reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements.

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Agency funds reported as part of the fiduciary fund
financial statements are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations and,
therefore, do not have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied and other taxes are
recognized when the transaction occurs. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the State’s
enterprise operations and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.
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Intrafund non-exchange transactions between the primary government and component units
are reported as operating or capital grants as appropriate for restricted amounts. Unrestricted
amounts are reported as general revenue.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the State considers all revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to other long term liabilities including
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Taxes, grants, fees, sales, rents, and interest income associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period to the extent earned and available. All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the State. Revenue related to
expenditure driven grants is recognized when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other requirements for recognition have been met.

Governmental Funds
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources obtained and used for those services traditionally provided by a state
government, which are not required to be accounted for in other funds. These services include,
among others, education, and health and social services.

Federal Fund — The Federal Fund accounts for all activities relating to the State’s federal grant
programs.

Local School District Fund — The Local School District Fund is used to account for aggregate
financial activity of the State’s local school districts that is funded by locally-raised real estate
taxes, interest, and minor miscellaneous revenue. All other financial activity that is funded
from sources, such as federal grant programs, major and minor capital project programs, and
subsidized government programs are accounted for in the General Fund, Federal Fund, and
Capital Projects Fund.

Capital Projects Fund — Transactions related to resources obtained and used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary and
Fiduciary Funds), are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Such resources are derived
principally from proceeds of general obligation bond issues, federal grants, and transfers from
the General Fund.
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Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for those activities which are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The costs of providing services to the public on
a continuing basis are financed by or recovered primarily through user charges.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the unemployment fund are charges to employers for taxes
against wages. The principal operating revenues of the lottery fund and DelDOT fund are
charges to customers for sales and services.

The Lottery fund recognizes revenue from online games on the day of the drawing. Revenue
from the sale of instant tickets is recognized when the book has been activated and 85% of the
related prizes of an activated book are paid, 90 days from the date of activation, or when the
next pack of the same game is activated. Revenue from the video lottery and table games is
recognized, net of prizes paid, at the time the public plays the game. Revenue from the sports
lottery is also recognized at the time the public plays the game.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. For the unemployment fund, expenses are
payments of benefits to recipients. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating expenses.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:
DelDOT Fund — The DelDOT Fund accounts for the activities relating to the operation of the
State’s Department of Transportation, including the Delaware Transportation Authority, which

is comprised of the Transportation Trust Fund and Delaware Transit Corporation.

Unemployment Fund — The Unemployment Fund accounts for the activities relating to the
State’s Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund.

Lottery Fund — The Lottery Fund accounts for the activities relating to the State’s Lottery
program.

Fiduciary Funds

The fiduciary funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity or as an agency

for other individuals or organizations. The fiduciary fund statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
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The State reports the following fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds — The Delaware Public Employees' Retirement System (DPERS) is a
public employee retirement system, which covers substantially all State employees. It provides
services and benefits almost exclusively to the primary government and it is considered a
fiduciary fund and is shown in the financial statements as part of the primary government as a
pension trust fund. Pension trust funds account for transactions, assets, liabilities and net
position available for plan benefits (Note 16). For pension trust funds, employee contributions
are recognized as revenue in the period in which the employee services are performed.
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

OPEB Trust Fund — The OPEB Trust Fund is a trust administered by DPERS. In addition to
providing pension benefits, the State is statutorily required to provide health insurance
coverage and survivor benefits for retired employees and their survivors. Substantially all of
the State’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement
age while working for the State. Health care benefits are provided through plans whose
premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The cost of providing post-retirement
benefits is shared between the State and the retired employee.

Investment Trust Funds — Investment Trust Funds are used to account for external investment
pools where a government commingles the monies of more than one legally separate entity
and invests, on the participants’ behalf, in an investment portfolio and one or more of the
participants is not part of the sponsor’s reporting entity. The Investment Trust Fund accounts
for the transactions, assets, liabilities and net position for the DPERS’s external investment
pool and for the OPEB Fund Investment Trust Fund.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of the
results of operations. They account for the receipt of various taxes, deposits, deductions, and
certain property collected by the State, acting in the capacity of an agent, and for the
distribution to other governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 74, Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions. The objective of this
Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other
than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose
external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions
and assessing accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all
postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating
additional transparency. This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for
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Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. The adoption of this
Statement resulted in enhanced note disclosures and schedules of required supplementary
information in the State’s financial statements as the OPEB Plan does not issue stand-alone
financial statements. The additional disclosures include the components of the net OPEB
liability and significant assumptions used to measure the OPEB liability including sensitivity
to the changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate. Additional required
supplementary information is also required including schedules of changes in the net OPEB
liability.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 77 Tax
Abatement Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is to provide financial statement users
with essential information about the nature and magnitude of the reduction in tax revenues
through tax abatement programs in order to better assess whether current-year revenues were
sufficient to pay for current-year services, compliance with finance-related legal or contractual
requirements, where a government’s financial resources come from and how it uses them, and
financial position and economic condition and how they have changed over time. The adoption
of this Statement required the State to include financial statement disclosures regarding the
abatements offered by the State including the impact to tax revenues for the fiscal year.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 78 Pensions
Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. The objective
of this Statement is to address an issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No.
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement establishes accounting
and financial reporting standards for defined benefit pensions provided to employees of state
or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan that is not a state or local governmental pension plan, is used to provide defined
benefit pensions both to employees of state or local government employers and to employees
of employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and has no predominant state
or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state and local
governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). The State is not a
participant in any pension plan outside of DPERS and therefore, the adoption of this Statement
had no impact on the financial statements of the State.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 80 Blending
Requirements for Certain Component Units. The objective of this Statement is to improve
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain
component units. This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement
of component units of all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires
blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary
government is the sole corporate member. The State is not the sole corporate member of any
not-for-profit organizations and therefore, the adoption of this Statement had no impact on the
financial statements of the State.
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During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 82 Pension
Issues. The objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in the application of pension
accounting and financial reporting requirements by addressing certain issues that have been
raised with respect to Statements No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statements
68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This Statement
addresses issues regarding the presentation of payroll-related measures in required
supplementary information, the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from
the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and the
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution
requirements. The adoption of this Statement required the State to change covered-employee
payroll to covered payroll in the note disclosures and required supplementary information.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 85 Omnibus
2017 for the topic reporting by OPEB plans (paragraph 13). The objective of this Statement is
to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting which address practice issues that
includes the measure of payroll as required in GASB Statement No. 74. Statement 85 changes
the required presentation of the measure of payroll from covered-employee payroll to covered
payroll in the required supplementary information. The adoption of this topic of the Statement
implemented the use of covered payroll in conjunction with the adoption of Statement No. 74.

Impact of Future Accounting Pronouncements

In June of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting for state and local governments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB). It improves information provided by state and local
government employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and
No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for
OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans, established new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB
plans. The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that
is provided to the employees of state and local government employers. This Statement
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The
State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In March of 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by establishing
recognition and measurement requirements for irrevocable split-interest agreements. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for irrevocable split-interest
agreements created through trusts or other legally enforceable agreements with characteristics

43



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2017

equivalent to irrevocable split-interest agreements where the resources are for the
unconditional benefit of the government and other beneficiaries. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The State is
currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In November of 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for
retirement obligations of certain tangible capital assets including methods for measurement of
the obligation, recognition in the financial statements and required note disclosures. This
Statement requires that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably
estimable. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2018. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In January of 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities. The objective of
this Statement is to enhance the consistency and comparability of state and local government
fiduciary activity and improve the usefulness of the information for assessing the government’s
accountability as fiduciaries. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial
reporting for fiduciary activities, which includes fiduciary component units of pension and
OPEB plans, pension and OPEB plans that are not component units but meet the criteria in
Statement No. 67 or 74 and other activities such as investment or private-purpose trust funds
or custodial funds. All fiduciary activities will be reported in the statement of fiduciary net
position and statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The State is currently
evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

In March of 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85 Omnibus 2017. The objective of this
Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting by addressing
practice issues for the following topics not adopted in fiscal year ending June 30, 2017:
blending component units in a business-type activity, reporting of goodwill, clarification of
certain investments for fair value measurement and application, timing of the measurement of
pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures, and recognition and measurement of on-behalf
payments for pensions or OPEB. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of
the remaining topics of this Statement.

In May of 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86 Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for
in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other
monetary assets acquired with only existing resources are placed in an irrevocable trust for the
sole purpose of extinguishing debt. It also improves accounting and financial reporting for
prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to the financial statements for debt
that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of
this Statement.
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In June of 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 Leases. The objective of this Statement
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting
and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
This Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This Statement
requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. The State is currently evaluating the future impact of this Statement.

(c) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
Cash Equivalents, Cash and Pooled Investments, and Investments

Cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, short-term money market securities, and other
deposits held by financial institutions, generally with original maturities of three months or
less at the time of purchase.

Cash and Pooled Investments consist of cash equivalents, commercial paper, certificates of
deposit, short-term (12 to 18 months) and long-term investments, which comprise corporate,
municipal and U.S. government obligations, held and managed by the State Treasurer.

Investment securities are stated at quoted market prices, except that investment securities with
a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are stated at cost or amortized cost.

All of the investment assets of the Pension and Investment Trust Funds, with the exception of
the Closed State Police Pension Plan (which is a pay-as-you-go plan) and the Delaware
Volunteer Firemen’s Fund (which is a length of service award plan), are pooled and invested
in a common Master Trust. Investments are presented at fair value or net asset value. Fair
values for fixed income and equity securities are determined by quoted market prices based on
national exchanges when available. Pooled investments are funds wherein the System owns
units or shares of commingled equity, fixed income, and cash funds. Pooled investments are
redeemable with the underlying funds at net asset values under the terms of the partnership
agreements and/or subscription agreements. Alternative investments are ownership interests
in investment limited partnerships or private LLCs, some of which may be illiquid.

The valuation method for pooled and alternative investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value is such that the DPERS establishes fair value by using the net asset
value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent), such as member units or an ownership interest in
partners’ capital to which a proportionate share of net assets is attributed. These values are
calculated by the management of each investment fund as of DPERS’ measurement date,
generally in a manner consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s

45



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2017

measurement principles for investment companies The NAV received from each investment
fund are reviewed by DPERS management and its investment advisor; both management and
the custodian receive periodic and audited annual financial reports from the management of
each investment fund.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the
current portion of interfund loans). All trade and property tax receivables, including those for
the component units, are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles and refunds.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the State’s policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. In the government-
wide financial statements, restricted net assets represent balances that are subject to external
restrictions or were created by enabling legislation.

The State has the following restricted assets:

e The Delaware Transportation Authority restricts revenue bond proceeds that are
accounted for in the Transportation Trust Fund.
e The Unemployment Fund restricts the entire net position for unemployment benefits.

e The governmental activities have funds that are required to be restricted as disclosed in
Note 19.

The discretely presented component units have the following restricted assets:

e Diamond State Port Corporation has restricted investments for capital project outlays.

e Delaware State University has restricted assets for capital projects, grants, and college
endowment funds.

e Delaware State Housing Authority has restricted assets used for the specific purpose of
housing development fund activities per enabling legislation.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (which are
normally immovable and of value only to the State, such as roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary funds and discretely presented
component units.

Capital assets are defined by the State as assets with estimated useful lives in excess of one
year at the date of acquisition. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or
constructed, or estimated historical cost if the original cost is not determinable. Donated capital
assets including donated works of art and capital assets received in a service concession
arrangement are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

All land and buildings are capitalized, regardless of cost. Equipment and vehicles are
capitalized when the cost of individual items exceeds $25,000. Building and land
improvements are capitalized when the cost of the project exceeds $100,000. Infrastructure
and software are capitalized when the costs of individual items or projects exceed $1.0 million.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized, but rather expensed as incurred.

The State possesses certain capital assets that have not been capitalized and depreciated,
because the assets cannot be reasonably valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful
lives. These assets include works of art and historical treasures, such as statues, monuments,
historical documents, paintings, forts, miscellaneous State capitol-related artifacts and
furnishings. These assets are held for public exhibition, education or research in the furtherance
of public service rather than for financial gain; they are protected, kept unencumbered, cared
for and preserved; and they are subject to an organizational policy that requires the proceeds
from sales of collection items to be used to acquire other items for collections.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, plant, equipment, and software of the primary government and component units is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Primary Discretely Presented
Government Component Unit

Asset Years Years
Buildings and Building Improvements 10 -40 15-75
Land Improvements 20 15-45
Furniture and Equipment 3-12 3-40
Vehicles 7 3-6

Software 5 5-10
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The State has elected to use the modified approach to account for certain infrastructure assets.
Under this process, the State does not record depreciation expense nor are amounts capitalized
in connection with improvements to these assets, unless the improvements expand the capacity
or efficiency of an asset. Utilization of this approach requires the State to: 1) commit to
maintaining and preserving affected assets at or above a condition level established by the
State, 2) maintain an inventory of the assets and perform periodic condition assessments to
ensure that the condition level is being maintained, and 3) make annual estimates of the
amounts that must be expended to maintain and preserve assets at the predetermined condition
levels. Roads and bridges maintained by the Department of Transportation are accounted for
using the modified approach.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are defined as consumption of net assets by the government
that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are defined as
acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.
Deferred outflows increase net position, similar to assets and deferred inflows decrease net
position, similar to liabilities.

Advances from Federal Government

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the State has recorded an advance of $5.8 million for the
Delaware Economic Development Office (DEDO) federal State Small Business Credit
Initiative program.  This program supports lending to small businesses and small
manufacturers and will be expended as qualified applicants are approved for the program. The
advance amount is recorded in the Federal Fund.

Compensated Absences

It is the State’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. In the governmental fund financial statements, liabilities for compensated
absences are accrued when they are considered “due and payable” and recorded in the fund
only for separations or transfers that occur before year-end. In the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, the State has accrued a liability for compensated
absences, recognizing the obligation to make future payments.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (DPERS) and
additions to/deductions from DPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by DPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

Fund Equity

In governmental fund types, fund equity is called “fund balance.” Fund balances are reported
as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned as described in Note 19.

The State Constitution provides that certain excess unencumbered budgetary general funds at
the end of a fiscal year must be placed in a reserve account (the Budget Reserve Account).
This account, designed to mitigate the operational impact of any future unanticipated deficits
may not exceed 5% of the estimated general fund revenue for the ensuing fiscal year. Total
funding of the Budget Reserve Account was $231.6 million at June 30, 2017.

When resources meeting more than one of the classifications (excluding nonspendable) are
commingled in an account, assuming that expenditure meets the constraints of the
classification, the assumed order of spending is restricted first, committed second, assigned
third and finally unassigned.

In proprietary funds, fund equity is called net position. Net position is comprised of three
components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted as defined on page
38.

(d) Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental receivables when entitlement occurs. All other federal reimbursement type
grants are recorded as accounts receivable when the related expenditures or expenses are
recognized. Related revenue is recorded subject to availability in the governmental funds.

(e) Litigation Revenue
In 1997, several states began litigation against defendant tobacco product manufacturers to
recover certain amounts the states expended to provide health care to the users of tobacco

products. In 1998, a settlement was reached which provided that the states cease litigation
against the manufacturers. As part of the Master Settlement Agreement, certain manufacturers
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agreed to remit periodic payments to the states until 2025. The State’s share of the estimated
$200 billion settlement amounted to $774.5 million. Amounts to be remitted are calculated
based on a variety of specific settlement provisions. Future tobacco product sales are one key
factor used in determining periodic payment amounts. A receivable of $14.0 million has been
recorded pursuant to the settlement. The Master Settlement agreement receipts of $26.8 million
are recorded in the general fund as part of other revenue and as miscellaneous general revenue
on the government-wide statement of activities. Expenditures of monies received under the
Master Settlement Agreement are authorized by legislation and are dedicated to health care
and related programs.

(f) Management Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Restatements

Net position of the Discretely Presented Components Units was restated from the fiscal year 2016
ending balance of $1,182.7 million to $1,185.3 million at the beginning of fiscal year 2017, an
increase of $2.6 million. The increase was due to increases in the Charter Schools for correction
of prior year errors of $1.4 million and the closure of a school of $1.2 million, removing it from
the discretely presented component units.

NOTE 2 CASH, INVESTMENTS AND RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash Management Policy and Investment Guidelines

The State Treasurer maintains the majority of the deposits and investments of the primary
government and uses professional money managers to invest the State's deposits according to
guidelines set in the Statement of Objectives and Guidelines for the Investment of State of
Delaware Funds (the Policy) by the State’s Cash Management Policy Board (the Board). The
Board, created by State law, establishes policies for, and the terms, conditions, and other matters
relating to, the investment of all money belonging to the State except money in DPERS and the
OPEB Trust and money held under the State deferred compensation program. By law, all deposits
and investments belonging to the State are under the control of the State Treasurer in various
pooled investment funds (State Investment Pool), except for those that, by specific authority, are
under the control of other agencies or component units, as determined by the Board. The deposit
and investment policies of those entities may differ from those of the State Treasurer. Typically,
these agencies follow the deposit and investment policies of the State Treasurer in an effort to
minimize deposit and investment risks.
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As mandated by State statutes, the State’s funds shall be invested pursuant to the prudent person
standard as defined in the Policy. The prudent person standard allows the Board to establish
investment policies based on investment criteria that it defines, and it allows the Board to delegate
investment authority to investment professionals. This standard of care not only permits but also
encourages diversifying investments across various asset classes.

The objectives and guidelines, as outlined in the Policy, apply to all cash and special purpose funds
for which the State is financially accountable. These funds are categorized as outlined below:

e (Cash Accounts - Cash accounts divide the State's available cash into three parts:

e Collection and Disbursement Accounts - The State maintains an amount of cash in
its general collection and disbursement accounts sufficient to meet its outstanding
obligations.

e (Cash and Liquidity Accounts - The majority of the State's cash balance available
for investment is maintained in the cash and liquidity accounts. These accounts are
managed and invested by investment managers, selected by the Board through
competitive bid, in order to maximize the return to the State while, at the same time,
providing for safety of principal and sufficient liquidity for the State to meet its
cash needs. The State manages its short-term investments to ensure sufficient
liquidity and prevent their premature sale for the purpose of covering expenditures.
Short-term investments should mature at face value in sufficient amounts to meet
any needs.

e Reserve Cash (Intermediate) Account - To the extent cash is not expected to be
needed on short notice, the Board directs the funding of a third part. This account
is managed and invested by an investment manager or managers, selected by the
Board after a competitive bid, in order to maximize the return on said money to the
State while providing for the safety of principal. The State manages its intermediate
investments to ensure such investments are made under circumstances and in
amounts in which the State would not be forced to liquidate them at a loss.

e Special Purpose Accounts - There are two primary types of special purpose accounts:

e Endowment Accounts — Endowment accounts consist of funds set-aside for
specified purposes.

e Authority Accounts - The State's Authorities (state agencies, local school districts
and component units) maintain a variety of fund types, including various operating
funds, bond funds and debt service reserve funds.

The Policy specifies the types of investments these managers can make; the maximum percentage
of assets that may be invested in particular instruments; the minimum credit quality of these
investments; and the maximum length of time the assets can be invested. The Policy provides,
among other things, the percentage limits of the entire portfolio, ranging from 5% to 20% that may
be invested in obligations of any one issuer, other than the U.S. Government which has no
restrictions. The following investments are permissible for all funds under the review of the Board,
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subject to percentage limitations of the account:

U.S. Government securities

Government agency securities

Certificates of deposit, time deposits, and bankers acceptances
Corporate debt instruments

Repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements

Money market funds

Canadian treasury bills

Canadian agency securities
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities
Municipal obligations

Additional permissible investments for special-purpose accounts only:

e (QGuaranteed investment contracts
e Asset-backed securities and trust certificates

The primary government’s accounts are categorized as “authority accounts”. At June 30, 2017,
investments of the primary government were primarily in commercial paper, corporate obligations,
government agency bonds and notes, and municipal obligations. All of these meet the objectives
defined by the Policy. The State’s Cash Management Policy Board Statement of Objectives and
Guidelines for the Investment of State of Delaware Funds is available by request through the Office
of the State Treasurer.

Risks

The following deposits and investments disclosure of the primary government excludes the OPEB
Trust and DPERS, which are described on pages 59 — 64.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party.

All State deposits are required by law to be collateralized by direct obligations of, or obligations,
which are guaranteed by the United States of America, or other suitable obligations as determined
by the Board, unless the Board shall find such collateralization not in the best interest of the State.
The Board has determined that certificates of deposit and time deposits must be collateralized,
unless the bank issuing the certificate has assets of not less than $5 billion and is rated not lower
than "II" by Fitch, Inc. “Peer Group Rating”. The Board has also determined that State demand
deposits need not be collateralized, provided that any bank that holds these funds has had for the
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last two years a return on average assets of 0.5% or greater and an average equity-capital ratio of
at least 1:20. If the bank does not meet the above criteria, collateral must consist of one or more of
the following:

U.S. Government securities;

U.S. Government agency securities;

Federal Home Loan Board letters of credit;

State of Delaware securities; or

Securities of a political subdivision of the State with a Moody's Investors Service rating
of "A" or better.

At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the primary government’s deposits was $434.6 million
and the bank balance was $506.8 million. Of the $506.8 million bank balance, $42.6 million was
fully insured; $125.5 million represents unemployment insurance taxes collected from Delaware
employers that are held in escrow by the U.S. Treasury; and the remaining $338.7 million was
subject to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured and uncollateralized. Included in the
primary government’s deposits are agency funds. The carrying amount of the agency fund’s
deposits was $29.0 million and the bank balance was $29.8 million. The $29.8 million bank
balance was subject to custodial credit risk because the deposits were not covered by depository
insurance or the deposits were uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institutions, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent but not in the government’s name.

Of the primary government’s bank balance of $506.8 million, $259.2 million is part of the
Treasurer’s cash pool and the remaining balance represents outside bank accounts of the primary
government.

State law permits the Treasurer to deposit in a financial institution in the State in which the
Treasurer has custody if the deposit is interest bearing; the financial institution provides collateral
that has a market value that exceeds the amount by which a deposit exceeds the deposit insurance,
and a custodian holds the collateral.

Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party may not be recovered. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities
are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the
counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name.

At June 30, 2017, the primary government’s investments were $2,364.7 million. Of the primary
government’s investments, $381.6 million was fully insured and collateralized. Included in the
primary government’s investments of $2,364.7 million are agency funds. The amount of the
agency funds’ investments was $74.1 million.
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The following table provides information on $1,983.1 million of the primary government’s
investments that are exposed to custodial credit risk; $72.3 million of this amount represents the
agency funds’ investments:

Fair Value (Expressed

Investment Type in Thousands)
Certificates of Deposit $ 148,808
Commerical Paper 123,766
Corporate Obligations 657,972
U.S. Government Obligations 780,071
Municipal Obligations 21,787
Money Market 24,905
Mutual Funds 71,689
Equity Securities 48,088
Other Pooled 2,956
Other Obligations 103,054
$ 1,983,096

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Also, the terms of a debt investment may cause its fair value to be highly sensitive to
interest rate changes. The State manages interest rates using the segmented time distribution and
effective duration methods. The State approves and contracts with different investment managers
of fixed income securities in order to manage the exposure to interest rate risk with each different
manager focusing on different goals of yield periods or duration of maturities of their particular
portion of the investment pool. The Policy provides either maturity or duration limitations for the
various investment pools. The interest rate risk inherent in the portfolio is monitored by measuring
the weighted average maturity and/or duration.

Effective duration measures the expected change in value of a fixed income security for a given
change in interest rate. This method takes into account the likely timing and amounts of variable

cash flows for bonds with call options and prepayment provisions.

The following table presents the fair value and effective duration of the primary government and
agency fund investments by investment type at June 30, 2017:
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Expressed in Thousands

Outside Effective

Treasurer's  Treasurer's Total Duration (In
Investment Type Pool Pool Investments Years)
Corporate Obligations $ 642942 $ 15,030 § 657,972 2.12
Municipal Obligations 21,787 - 21,787 1.73
U.S. Government Obligations 775,091 243,563 1,018,654 1.92
Other Obligations 103,054 - 103,054 1.84
Other Pooled - 2,956 2,956 N/A
Equity Securities - 48,088 48,088 N/A
Mutual Funds 00,326 5,363 71,689 N/A
Money Market 23,609 1,296 24,905 N/A
Commercial Paper 123,766 141,984 265,750 0.23
Certificates of Deposit 147,973 1,834 149,807 0.50

$ 1904548 § 460,114 § 2,364,662

Although the Policy does not limit total portfolio maturities, it provides maximum maturity
restrictions for each of the investment account types as described below:

e Cash Account Investment - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of
purchase for the cash account is one year.

e Liquidity Accounts - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of purchase
shall be two years for the Liquidity Accounts; notwithstanding the foregoing, the term
for corporate debt instruments and both mortgage backed and asset backed securities
that are subject to periodic reset of coupon or interest rate may have an average life not
to exceed three years.

e Reserve Cash (Intermediate) Account - The maximum maturity for any investment at
the time of purchase shall be ten years. The maximum average maturity of the portfolio
shall be seven years.

e Endowment Accounts - The maximum maturity for any investment at the time of
purchase is ten years. The maximum average maturity of the portfolio is seven years.
The Board shall consider tailoring maturity restrictions to meet specific purposes for
endowment accounts to be established in the future.

e Authority Operating, Bond and Debt Service Reserve Fund Accounts - The maximum
maturity for any investment at the time of purchase is ten years, except when prudent
to match a specific investment instrument with a known specific future liability, in
which case the maturity limitation shall match the maturity of the corresponding
liability.
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As of June 30, 2017, the primary government and agency funds had the following debt investments

and maturities:

Investment Maturity
(Expressed in Thousands)
Investment Maturities
Fair Value  Less Than 1 1to5 6to10 More than 10
Corporate Obligations $ 657972 § 132585 $§ 521610 § 3,777 § -
Municipal Obligations 21,787 4334 17,453 - -
U.S. Government Obligations
U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes 580,021 227277 342,888 9,856 -
U.S. Agency Bonds, Notes 438,633 282,232 139,315 4,741 12,345
Other Obligations
Private Placements 103,054 28,583 73,118 1,353 -
Pooled Investments 2,956 2,936 20 - -
Total Inves tments $ 1,804,423 § 677947 $1,094404 § 19,727 § 12,345
Credit Risk

Credit risk of investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not

fulfill its obligations.

The Policy requires that the State’s investments in asset-backed securities be rated AAA by a major
rating agency. Corporate debt instruments must be rated by Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services
(S & P) and/or Moody’s Investor Service (Moody’s) and/or Fitch Ratings (Fitch) as follows:

Investment
Commercial Paper
Senior Long-Term Debt
Corporate Bonds

S&P Moody's Fitch
A-1 P-2 F2
A A A
A- A3 A-

Additionally, the State has multiple non-rated/pooled accounts which represent immaterial
amounts when treated individually. The Board permits the types of investments which are held in

these accounts.

The following table presents the State’s investments which were rated by S & P as of June 30,
2017 the ratings are presented using S & P’s rating scale:
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Credit Risk - Quality Ratings
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Type TOTAL AAA AA A A-1 NR
Corporate Obligations $ 657,972 $78,777 $ 161,047 $ 364,744 $ - $ 53,404
Municipal Obligations 21,787 - 15,628 6,159 - -
U.S. Government Obligations

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes 580,021 5,902 574,119 - - -

U.S. Agency Bonds, Notes 438,633 3,274 423,078 - - 12,281
Other Obligations

Private Placements 103,054 1,613 55,833 41,269 - 4,339

Pooled Investments 2,956 2,956 - - - -
Money Market 24,905 - - - - 24,905
Equity Securities 48,088 - - - - 48,088
Mutual Funds 71,689 - - - - 71,689
Certificate of Deposit 149,807 - 7,996 5,803 - 136,008
Commercial Paper 265,750 - - - 141,984 123,766

Total Investments $ 2,364,662 $ 92,522 $ 1,237,701 $ 417,975 $ 141,984 $ 474,480

NR = Non-Rated Pooled accounts
Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the State’s investments
in a single issuer (5% or more of total investments). When investments are concentrated in one
issuer, this concentration represents heightened risk of potential loss. No specific percentage
identifies when concentration risk is present. The investments in obligations explicitly guaranteed
by the U.S. government, mutual funds, and other pooled investments are exempt from disclosure.

The Policy provides the following percentage of account limitations, valued at market.
Investments due to mature in one business day may be excluded from the computation of said
limitations.

A. U.S. Government - no Restrictions.
B. Government Agency - 50% total, 20% in any one agency.

C. Certificates of Deposits, Time Deposits and Bankers Acceptances - 50% total, 5% in any
one issuer

a. Domestic - no additional restrictions.

b. Non-Domestic - 25%.

c. Delaware Domiciled - Not more than the lesser of $10 million or 25% of an issuer’s
total equity capital may be invested in any one issuer. (Investments due to mature
in one business day may be excluded from the computation of this percentage.)

D. Corporate Debt - 50% total, 25% in any one industry, 5% in any one issuer, 5% of any
issuer's total outstanding securities.
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a. Domestic - no additional restrictions.
b. Non-Domestic - 25%, 5% in any one issuer.

E. Repurchase Agreements - 50% total.

F. Reverse Repurchase Agreements - 25% total.

G. Money Market Funds - 25% total, 10% in any one fund.

H. Canadian Treasuries - 25% total, 10% in any one agency.

I. Canadian Agency Securities - 25% total, 10% in any one agency.

J. Mortgage-backed and asset backed securities - 10% total (when combined with asset
backed securities and trust certificates).

K. Municipal Obligations - 5% in any one issuer.

L. Guaranteed Investment Contracts - Permitted where it is prudent to match a specific
investment instrument with a known specific future liability, subject to the credit quality
guidelines for commercial paper and corporate bonds and debentures and with adequate
exit provisions in the event of the future downgrade of the issuer.

M. Asset Backed Securities and Trust Certificates - 10% total (when combined with mortgage-
backed and asset backed securities).

At June 30, 2017, as required by the State’s laws and policies, there were no obligations that
represented 5% or more of the primary government’s investments, except for U.S. government
securities, pooled and mutual funds.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in the foreign exchange rate will adversely impact
the fair value of an investment or deposit.

The Policy only permits investments denominated in U.S. dollars; therefore, the State’s
investments are not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Commitments

At June 30, 2017, the State did not enter into any commitment agreements with any investment
managers for future funding of various asset classes.
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OPEB Trust Fund (OPEB Trust)
Investment Policy

The State Board of Pension Trustees is responsible for the management and investment of the
funds in the OPEB Trust. The Board authorized its Investment Committee to select the investment
managers of the OPEB Trust following the established investment guidelines for the Delaware
Public Employees’ Retirement System (System) until a separate investment policy is adopted for
the OPEB Trust. The System follows the prudent person standard, which requires fiduciaries to
discharge their duties solely in the interests of participants and their beneficiaries with such care,
skill, prudence, and diligence as a person acting in like circumstances would exercise in the
conduct of an enterprise with similar character and with similar aims. The OPEB Trust investment
objectives and policies currently include indexed exposure to approximate the System’s policy
benchmark. The Investment Committee regularly reviews the OPEB investment performance, and
considers investment vehicles which strike a balance between risk and return while being mindful
of the government’s time horizon for the OPEB investments. Of the OPEB trust’s investment
balance of $339.3 million, all are invested in three mutual funds and are not in individual
investments registered in the Trust’s name. For the fixed income type of mutual fund, the
investments in maturities is in government agencies and hold a maturity of six to ten years at a fair
market value of $137.5 million with a AA credit rating. The foreign equities type of mutual fund
represents $69.3 million of the balance of the trust. These are denominated in U.S. Dollars and are
invested in no individual country, but an international region. The other $132.5 million is in an
index fund. The OPEB Trust also has $15.8 million held in cash and pooled investments with the
State Treasurer’s Office and $6.4 million in cash held in accounts outside of the State Treasurer’s
Office.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. At June 30, 2017,
the $6.4 million held outside of the State Treasurer’s Office is subject to custodial credit risk
because it was uninsured and uncollaterized.

Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System (DPERS or System)
Investment Policy

There are no State statutes limiting allowable investments for the System. The investment
decisions are dictated by the prudent person rule and the internal investment guidelines established
by the Board as outlined below:
e Allocate a minimum of 20% of assets to fixed income investments such as bonds, cash
equivalents and certain real estate investments
e Maintain a diversified portfolio, to minimize the risk of overexposure in any one market
segment or investment style
e Monitor the performance of all investment managers using specific benchmarks
e Control exposure in illiquid asset classes
e Review, re-examine, and reconfirm the operation of results of the investment process
regularly
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¢ Identify new long-term opportunities for risk reduction and improved investment returns
e Review actuarial assumptions to ensure consistency with capital market expectations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, management of the System has operated in accordance
with these policies, in all material respects.

Securities Lending

The System entered into a security lending agreement with its custodian bank, which acts as a
security lending agent for the System. The objective of securities lending is to earn income through
a conservatively operated and well-controlled program. The custodian is authorized to lend
securities within the borrower limits and guidelines established by the System. The System lends
fixed income, domestic equity, and international equity securities to approved broker/dealers.
Collateral for securities loaned equals 102 percent of fair market value for domestic securities and
108 percent for international securities.

The only types of collateral received from borrowers are obligations issued by the U.S.
Government. All rights of ownership to securities pledged as collateral remain with the borrower
except in the event of default. The System has the authority to sell collateral securities only upon
a borrower default. As of June 30, 2017, there were no violations of legal or contractual provisions.
The System has not experienced any losses resulting from the default of a borrower or lending
agent during the year ended June 30, 2017.

At year-end, the System has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the System
owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the System. The contract with the
System’s custodian requires it to indemnify the System if the borrowers fail to return the securities
or fail to pay the System for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities are
on loan. The System manages its market risk by recording investments at fair value daily and
maintaining the value of the collateral held by the System in excess of the value of the securities
loaned. As of June 30, 2017, the fair value of securities on loan was $199.5 million. The associated
collateral was $203.8 million.

All open security loans can be terminated on demand by either the System or borrower. The
collateral is valued at fair value obtained from independent pricing services.

Investments

The following is a listing of fixed income investments and cash equivalents and related maturity
schedule which shows the System’s exposure to interest rate risk as of June 30, 2017. The System
holds $1,008.6 million in domestic fixed income and $97.8 million in foreign fixed income
instruments. Also included is $258.2 million in pooled stable value fund, $24.5 million in short
term bills and notes collectively reported as cash equivalents, and $1,410.2 million in pooled fixed
income investments.
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Delaware Public Employees' Retirement System (DPERS or System)
Investment Maturities (in Years)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Less

Investment Type/Sector Value than 1 1-6 6-10 10 +
Asset Backed Securities $ 2( 8 -3 2 8 -8 -
Bank Loans 350,981 4,538 169,254 176,889 300
Cash Equivalents 282,724 282,724 - - -
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 252 - - - 252
Corporate Bonds 294,282 5,808 110,685 70,344 107,445
Corporate Convertible Bonds 18,932 2,830 6,243 79 9,780
Government Agencies 14,326 14,326 - - -
Government Bonds 77,281 - 64,201 9,090 3,990
Index Linked Govermnent Bonds 337,713 - 169,667 117,983 50,063
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 12,674 7,852 465 - 4,357
Pooled Investments 1,410,203 - 310,815 1,099,388 -

Total $ 2,799,370] $ 318,078 $ 831,332 $ 1,473,773 § 176,187

Interest Rate Risk

The State has delegated investment policy for the System to the Board and its Committees. The
Investment Committee sets its own guidelines in conjunction with the Board to manage and review
the System’s exposure to fluctuating interest rates. Interest rate risk is a consideration when
establishing and reviewing investment manager guidelines and asset allocation. Both topics are
included in the Statement of Investment Policies and Objectives which is published on the
System’s website.

Credit Risk

The System’s general investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule to all risks incurred by
the fund. Investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and
intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculative
investments. The System has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices
related to credit risk. As of June 30, 2017, the System’s fixed income investments and cash
equivalents had the following credit risk characteristics (expressed in thousands):

Moody’s Ratings Percent of Market

or Comparable Total Net Position Value
AAA to A- 21.6% $ 2,051,624
BBB to B- 5.2% 495,908
CCC to CC 0.3% 32,551
Less than C 0.0% 426
Not Rated 2.3% 218,861

Total: 29.4% $ 2,799,370
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Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the deposits or collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. At
June 30, 2017, the $345.3 million carrying amount of the System’s cash and cash equivalents was
comprised of $282.7 million of short-term investments and $62.6 million in deposits. Ofthe $62.6
million in deposits, $61.8 million was subject to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
uncollaterized. The remaining $0.8 million was held as pooled deposits by the State Treasurer’s
Office.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party may not be recovered. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if the
securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either
the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name.
The System’s investments are not exposed to custodial credit risk as they are held by the System’s
custodian in the name of the System or its nominee.

Investment Concentration Risk

As of June 30, 2017, the System held no concentration of investments (except pooled investments)
in an individual issuer in excess of 5% of the fair value of the System’s net position.

Management Fees

The System paid $27.3 million in management fees to the alternative investment funds and
partnerships for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. These fees are netted against investment
income.

Foreign Investments

Foreign investments include equity securities, bonds, cash, and cash equivalents. The following
is a listing of the System’s foreign assets as of June 30, 2017. The listing includes $8.7 million of

investments of domestic issuers which have been classified as domestic, but are denominated in a
foreign currency.
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Investment Types
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Value in Fixed Cash and Cash
Currency U.S. Dollars Equities Income Equivalents

Australian Dollar $ 11,169 $ 1,972  $ 9,197 $ -
Brazilian Real 9,727 6,344 3,383 -
British Pound Sterling 39,334 37,531 1,794 9
Canadian Dollar 26,098 24,609 1,329 160
Danish Krone 5,185 5,185 - -
Euro 84,036 80,984 2,935 117
Hong Kong Dollar 58,480 55,107 - 3,373
Indonesian Rupiah 25,510 25,510 - -
Japanese Yen 25,628 25,551 - 77
Mexican Peso 14,589 5,100 9,489 -
New Zealand Dollar 17,468 - 17,468 -
Nigerian Naira 1,425 1,186 - 239
Norwegian Krone 3,830 - 3,830
Philippine Peso 18,985 18,979 - 6
Singapore dollar 2,686 2,686 - -
South Korean Won 1,066 1,066 - -
Swedish Krona 18,711 18,711 - -
Swiss Franc 24,204 24,204 - -
Thai Baht 4,463 4,463 - -
Turkish Lira 5,428 5,394 - 34
Total Foreign Currencies 398,022 344,582 49,425 4,015
Foreign Issued Investments

Denominated in U.S. Dollars 207,436 152,231 55,205 -
Pooled International Investments

Denominated in U.S. Dollars 1,193,866 1,193,866 - -

Total $ 1,799,324  $ 1,690,679 $ 104,630 $ 4,015

Derivatives

Derivatives are instruments (securities or contracts) whose value is dependent on such things as
stock or bond prices, interest rate levels, or currency exchange rates. The Board adopted a formal
written policy on the use of derivatives which is reviewed periodically and this policy, as amended,
was incorporated in the formalized investment policy adopted by the Board. Some selected
managers are permitted to use derivatives. In every case, the types of derivatives used and limits
on their use are stated in the manager’s contract and are monitored on an ongoing basis. Derivatives
serve a variety of useful purposes for the System, including the reduction of foreign exchange risk,
the minimization of transaction costs and as a means of implementing value added strategies to
enhance returns. If the use of derivatives in a portfolio strategy results in some leverage, that
leverage is never permitted to expose the Fund to a loss greater than the amount committed to that
strategy.
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The following lists principal categories of derivatives and their uses during the year:

Category Purpose
Foreign exchange forward contracts Hedge currency risk of investments denominated

in foreign currencies; enhance return

Exchange traded futures contracts Reduce transaction costs; hedge equity market
risk; control fixed income; counterbalance
portfolio duration; enhance return

Exchange traded options contracts Enhance return; reduce transaction costs
Total return equity swaps Hedge equity market risk exposure

Generally, derivatives are subject both to market risk and counterparty risk. The derivatives
utilized by the System typically have no greater risk than their physical counterparts, and in many
cases are offset by exposures elsewhere in the portfolio (for example, a short S&P 500 futures
contract partially hedging a long position in S&P 500 securities). Counterparty risk, the risk that
the “other party” to a contract will default, is managed by utilization of exchange traded futures
and options where practical (in which case the futures exchange is the counterparty and guarantees
performance) and by careful screening of counterparties where use of exchange traded products is
impractical or uneconomical.

Derivative securities are priced and accounted for at their fair value. For exchange traded securities
such as futures and options, closing prices from the securities exchanges are used. Foreign
exchange contracts are valued at the price at which the transaction could be settled by offset in the
forward markets.

The Investment Committee monitors the System’s derivative holdings on a regular basis to ensure
that the derivatives used by managers of the System will not have a material adverse impact on its
financial condition. Total derivative instruments at June 30, 2017 were not material to the system.
Risk and Uncertainty

The System invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk inherent in investment
securities, it is possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and that such change could affect the amounts reported.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

As of June 30, 2017, the carrying value and bank balances of DSHA’s deposits were $43.1 million
and $44.5 million, respectively, all of which are insured by the FDIC.
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Investment Policies

DSHA has an investment policy that encompasses all moneys related to the issuance of bonds, as
well as all funds otherwise held by DSHA. DSHA seeks first and foremost to ensure safety of
principal, and secondly, to attain the highest possible return available given the risk constraints.

DSHA is allowed to invest in certain qualified investments as defined by amended Subchapter I,
Section 4013, Chapter 40, Title 31, of the Delaware Code and DSHA’s formal investment policy.

Investments

Investments are presented at fair value. Fair values are determined by quoted market prices based
on national exchange prices for all investments, except for the State of Delaware Investment Pool.
The State pool is valued based on the pool’s share price. The table below lists the DSHA’s
investments and the related maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Less
Type Fair Value  than 1 1-5 5-10 10-20 20-30

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 20403 $ 9,091 $ 11212 $§ - $ - 9 -
U.S. Treasury Strips 388 - - 388 - -
U.S. Treasury Bonds 26 - - - 26 -
U.S. Agencies 26,618 9,971 16,647 - - -
Commercial Paper 1,416 1,416 - - - -
Corporate Notes 22,954 13,632 9,322 - - -
Investment Agreements 45 - - - - 45
Money Market Savings Accounts 4,010 4,010 - - - -
Bank Money Market Accounts 67,020 67,020 - - - -
State of Delaware Investment Pool 16,344 16,344 - - - -
Total Investments 159,224 121,584 37,181 388 26 45
Securitized Mortgage Loans 239,256 - - - - 239,256
Total Investments &

Securitized Mortgage Loans $ 398,480 $ 121,584 §$ 37,181 $388 $ 26 § 239,301

Credit Risk

DSHA'’s general investment policy is to make investments with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. As of June 30, 2017,
DSHA'’s investments were rated as follows:
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Ratings (S & P)
(Expressed in Thousands)
U.S. Government

Fair Value AAA AA+ AA AA- Al+ Al A+ Guaranteed

Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 20,403 § - $ - $ -8 - $ - $ - $ - 8§ 20,403

U.S. Treasury Strips 388 - - - - - - - 388

U.S. Treasury Bonds 26 - - - - - - - 26

U.S. Agencies 26,618 - 26,618 - - - -

Corporate Notes 22,954 1,741 4,105 1,961 10,240 2,636 2,270

Commercial Paper 1,416 - - - - 1,070 346 - -

Securitized Mortgage Loans 239,256 - - - - - - - 239,256
Total $ 311,09 § 1741 § 30,722 § 1961 § 10240 § 1070 § 2982 § 2270 § 260,072

NOTE 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The State categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
* Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: Inputs — other than quoted prices — included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability — either directly or indirectly
* Level 3: Unobservable inputs — market data are not available and are developed using the
best information available about the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing an asset or liability

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Equity securities and mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Fixed income securities and pooled
investments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using other inputs including,
but not limited to, interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals
as well as the latest available estimates of price or actual bids quoted in active and inactive markets
for those, or similar securities. Fixed income securities classified in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are the State’s proportional investments held in an investment pool.
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The State has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Investments by Fair Value
(expressed in thousands)

Fair Value Measurement

6/30/2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fixed Income Securities:
U.S. Government Obligations
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 580,021 $ 748§ 579273 $ -
U.S. Agency Notes 438,633 1,198 437,435 -
Municipal Obligations 21,787 - 21,787 -
Corporate Bonds 657,972 - 657,972 -
Commercial Paper 265,750 2,400 263,350 -
Other Pooled & Obligations 106,010 - 105,254 756
Equity Securities ’
Equity Securities 48,088 48,088 - -
Mutual Funds 71,689 71,689 - -
Total Inves tments by Fair Value Level $ 2189950 § 124,123 $ 2,065,071 $ 756
Investments not subject to measurement 174,712
Total Inves tments $ 2,364,662

OPEB Trust Fund (OPEB Trust)

OPEB investments are measured at fair value and the total investments of $339.3 million are
Level 1 investments as they are in mutual funds that are publicly traded in an active market.

Delaware Public Employee’s Retirement System (DPERS)

DPERS has both investments measured at fair value and investments that are measured using the
net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient to fair value which
are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.

Equity and Fixed Income securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active
markets for those securities.

Equity securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the latest available estimates of price bids
or actual price bids quoted in active and inactive markets for those securities.

Fixed Income securities and pooled investments classified in Level 2 are valued using other
inputs including, but not limited to, interest rates and yield curves that are observable at
commonly quoted intervals as well as the latest available estimates of price bids or actual bids
quoted in active and inactive markets for those, or similar, securities.
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Fixed Income securities classified in Level 3 are privately placed subordinated notes, valued
using a discounted cash flow model. Unobservable inputs include projected cash flows and the
discount rate.

Pooled investments classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are investments in open-end,
non-exchange-traded mutual funds for which fair value per share (unit) is determined and
published and is the basis for current transactions. These securities are valued at their NAV on
the date of valuation, and are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy since they may be
purchased or sold at their publically quoted NAV on the date of valuation.

DPERS has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Investments by Fair Value
(expressedin thousands)

Fair Value Measurement

6/30/2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fixed Income Securities:
Government Bonds $ 77281 $ - 3 77281 $ -
Indexed Linked Government Bonds 337,713 - 337,713 -
Government Agencies 14,326 - 14,326 -
Municipal Obligations 12,674 - 12,674 -
Corporate Bonds 294,282 - 289,743 4,539
Corporate Convertible Bonds 18,932 - 18,932 -
Asset-Backed Securities 2 - 2 -
Bank Loans 350,981 - 350,981 -
Commerical Mortgage-Backed 252 - 252 -
Equity securities:
Common & Preferred Stock 2,592,997 2,590,004 2,993 -
Equity Funds 2,619 1,318 1,301 -
Pooled Inves tments :
Equity Funds 309,407 309,407 - -
Fixed Income Funds 310,815 310,815 - -
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 4322281 $ 3,211,544 $ 1,106,198 $ 4,539
Total Investments Measured at NAYV 4,832,640
Total Inves tments $ 9,154,921

The valuation method for pooled and alternative investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value is such that the System establishes fair value by using the NAV per share
(or its equivalent), such as member units or an ownership interest in partners’ capital to which a
proportionate share of net assets is attributed. These values are calculated by the management of
each investment fund as of the System’s measurement date, generally in a manner consistent with
the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s measurement principles for investment companies.
The NAV received from each investment fund are reviewed by Pension Office staff and its
investment advisor; and both the System’s management and the custodian receive periodic and
audited annual financial reports from the management of each investment fund.
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The DPERS has the following recurring NAV measurements as of June 30, 2017. Excluded from
pooled investments below is a short term stable value fund that the System classifies as Cash
Equivalents in the amount of $258.3 million. At year end, the NAV, unfunded commitments, and
redemption terms are as follows:

Investments Measured at NAV
(expressed in thousands)

Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Fair Value Commitments (1) Frequency Notice Period
Pooled Investments:
Equity Funds $ 1,578,657 $ - Daily, Monthly 1 to 12 days
Fixed Income Funds 1,099,388 - Daily 1 day
Total Pooled Investments (2) $ 2,678,045
Alternative Investments:
Funds Primarily Invested in Public Securities
Credit/Distressed Debt Focused Strategy (3) § 187443 § - Quarterly, Annual 90 days
Equity Focused Strategy (4) 172,578 - Annual 45 t0 90 days
Multi Focused Strategy (5) 181,825 - Monthly 5 days
Funds Primarily Invested in Private Securities (6)
Buyout 153,591 115,785
International 308,905 98,116
Private Debt 62,465 24,135
Private Equity 781,959 259,340
Real Assets 305,829 142,831
Total Alternatives $ 2,154,595
Total Investments Measured at NAV $ 4,832,640

(1) Unfunded Commitments. DPERS has commitments to invest additional amounts, to be drawn
down as called upon at any time during the term of each relationship. The lengths of these
terms are discussed below. Generally, these commitments are self-funding; in that the capital
calls are met using cash flows generated by distributions received from alternative investment
funds as the underlying investments of the funds are liquidated.

(2) Pooled Investments. This type includes four index tracking funds, two global value equity
funds, and one short-term investment fund. The index funds maintain a portfolio constructed
to match or track the components of the following market indices: S&P 500, Russell 1000
Value, Barclays Capital U.S High Yield, and the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate. The global
value equity funds invest in both U.S. and non-U.S. equities, seeking quality companies that
are attractively valued and have growth potential. The short term investment fund is a stable-
value (money market-like) investment vehicle for cash reserves, which the System classifies
as Cash Equivalents. It is managed by the System’s Custodian to offer a competitive rate of
return through a portfolio of obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, and related money market instruments. Principal preservation and liquidity
management are the prime objectives.
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(3) Credit/Distressed Debt Focused Strategy. This type includes three funds that engage in
multiple investment strategies across the credit spectrum, with the objective of achieving
superior risk-adjusted returns through opportunistic investment. The composite portfolio for
this type includes investments in distressed corporate securities, convertible hedging,
residential and consumer debt, real estate debt, merger arbitrage, and real estate. In limited
circumstances, these funds have the ability to impose a suspension or postponement of
redemptions (a “gate”), or in the case of a withdrawal greater than 90% they may hold up to
10% of the redemption amount (a “holdback’) until the completion of the funds’ annual audit.
There have been no gates imposed during the reporting period. These funds may also segregate
a portion of the portfolio, commonly illiquid securities with no active market, from other
investments of the portfolio (a “side pocket”). Investments in a side pocket are redeemable
only upon liquidation of the underlying assets in the side pocket. Investments representing
approximately 9% of the value of the investments in this type are held in side pockets.
Investments representing approximately 13% of the value of the investments in this type cannot
be redeemed because the investments include restrictions (a “lock-up”) that do not allow for
initial redemption in the first 24-36 months after acquisition, with a rolling two-year lock-up
thereafter. The remaining restriction period for these investments ranged from 18 to 24 months
at June 30, 2017.

(4) Equity Focused Strategy. This type includes five funds that engage in a fundamental equity
investing strategy. The composite portfolio for this type invests both long and short primarily
in global common stocks, but also in debt, credit, private equity, derivative and other financial
instruments. In limited circumstances, these funds have the ability to impose a gate, or in the
case of a withdrawal greater than 90% they may hold back up to 10% of the redemption amount
until the completion of the funds’ annual audit. There was a restriction on redemption from
one manager pending the completion of the fund’s annual audit. The residual fund is expected
to be available for withdrawal in fiscal year 2018. These funds may also segregate a portion of
the portfolio in a side pocket. Investments in a side pocket are redeemable only upon
liquidation of the underlying assets in the side pocket. Investments representing approximately
9% of the value of the investments in this type are held in side pockets. Investments
representing approximately 22% of the value of the investments in this type cannot be
redeemed because the investments include an initial lock-up that does not allow for redemption
in the first five years after acquisition. The remaining restriction period for these investments
is approximately 39 months at June 30, 2017.

(5) Multi-Strategy. This type of fund is such that may invest in a wide range of asset classes in
order to meet fund objectives. In limited circumstances, this fund has the ability to impose a
suspension or postponement of redemptions (a “gate”), or in the case of a withdrawal greater
than 90%; may hold back 10% for approximately 15 days while the fund NAV is being
finalized. There have been no gates imposed during the current reporting period.

(6) Funds Primarily Invested in Private Securities. These investments can never be redeemed
with the funds. Instead, the nature of the investments in these types is that distributions are
received through the liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. It is expected that the
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underlying assets of the funds will be liquidated over the next 1 to 14 years. The strategy of
each type is as follows:

Buyout. This type includes three funds that make equity investments in mature, private
companies.

International. This type includes 12 funds that invest in private equity and buyout strategies
operating principally outside of the U.S.

Private Debt. This type includes six funds that invest in debt or equity securities of
financially stressed (distressed) companies, as well as convertible bonds and subordinated debt
in private companies.

Private Equity. This type includes 47 funds that invest in the equity securities of growing
private companies, primarily in the technology and healthcare sectors.

Real Assets. This type includes six funds that invest in commercial real estate and private
energy companies including commercial real estate, exploration and production, midstream,
power and services businesses.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)

At June 30, 2017, the Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA), a component unit of the State
of Delaware has $398.5 million of investments with $327.5 million classified in Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy and the remaining $71.0 million not measured at fair value since they are
money market accounts and not subject to measurement. The Level 2 investments are fixed
income securities and pooled investments valued using other inputs which includes interest rate
and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals as well as the latest available
estimates of price bids or actual bids quoted in active or inactive markets for similar securities.

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES

All trade, loan and tax account receivables are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In the governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be available
within 60 days of year-end are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.

Taxes receivable represent the amount of personal, business, and other taxes determined to be
measurable at June 30, 2017. Uncollectibility for taxes receivable primarily results from identified
assessment problems, inability to locate taxpayers, and accounts of decedents.

The State levies taxes on real property through its school districts. Each of the State’s three
counties establishes the assessed values of real estate and bills and collects its own property taxes.
Local school property taxes are levied by local school districts based on the assessed value of real
estate, as determined by county taxation formulas. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable on
or before September 30. Taxes paid after the payable date are assessed a 6% penalty for
nonpayment and 1% interest per month thereafter. Taxes are billed and collected by the counties
with funds remitted to the local school district to be used for the local share of school operating
costs and debt service on general obligation bonds issued for capital improvements. Receivables
as of year-end for the State’s individual funds, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows:
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Receivables - Primary Government
Governmental Activities/Governmental Funds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Local
School
General Federal District Total
Fund Fund Funds Receivables
Receivables
Taxes $ 164,592 $ - $ 44375 $ 208,967
Accounts 367,297 127,951 171 495,419
Loans and Notes 29,620 293,109 - 322,729
Intergovernmental - 160,518 - 160,518
Total Receivables 561,509 581,578 44,546 1,187,633
Allowance for Doubtful (407,468) (95,021) (200) (502,689)
Total Receivables, Net $ 154,041 $486,557 $ 44346 $ 684,944
Amounts not Scheduled for
Collection During the
Subsequent Year $ 67975 $274,508 $ 31,160 $ 373,643
Receivables - Primary Government
Business-Type Activities/Proprietary Funds
(Expressed in Thousands)
Total
Unemployment Lottery DelDOT Receivables
Receivables:
Taxes $ 69,526 $ -3 - $ 69,526
Accounts 13,273 8,712 21,709 43,694
Interest - - 722 722
Intergovernmental - - 17,477 17,477
Total Receivables 82,799 8,712 39,908 131,419
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (36,400) (792) - (37,192)
Total Receivables, Net  $ 46,399 $ 7,920 $ 39,908 $ 94,227

Amounts not Scheduled
for Collection During
the Subsequent Year $ - 8 - § - $ -
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Discretely Presented Component Units
Delaware State Housing Authority (DSHA)
Total receivables as of June 30, 2017 are as follows:

(Expressed in Thousands)

Receivables:
Mortgage Loans $ 276,795
Accrued Interest 64,431
Other Receivables 1,137
Grants Receivable 532
Total Receivables 342,895
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (12,132)

Total Receivables, Net $ 330,763

Amounts not Scheduled
for Collection During

the Subsequent Year $ 323,906

Mortgage loans receivable, which total $276.8 million, consist of single family and multi-family
loans and are collateralized by first, second or third mortgages on the properties and in limited
instances are guaranteed by corporate sponsors. Interest rates on the loans vary from 5.4% to
9.75%, and loan maturities are between one and seventeen years depending on the type of
mortgage loan issued.

NOTE 5 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
(a) Due To/From to Other Funds

Receivables reported as “due from other funds” and the related payables reported as “due to
other funds” represent amounts owed to State organizations by other organizations within the
State primary government. Amounts receivable from or payable to other levels of government
are reported as intergovernmental receivables or payables and are expected to be repaid within
one year from the date of these financial statements. The composition of due from/due to
balances at June 30, 2017 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Due To
General Lottery DelDOT Total
Due From
General $ - $ 5,386 $ 14,739 $ 20,125
Federal 21,050 - - 21,050
Lottery 945 - - 945
Total $ 21,995 $ 5,386 $ 14,739 $ 42,120
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The amounts due from the Federal Fund are recorded for borrowings to eliminate negative
balances in the State Investment Pool. The amount for the Federal Fund is created by
expenditures relating to reimbursement type federal grant revenues. These costs result in a
negative balance in the State Investment Pool.

The amount due from the Lottery Fund represents overpayments of profits required by law to
be transferred to the General Fund. The amount due to the Lottery Fund represents future
liabilities that require the State General Fund to pay as a result of the Lottery’s transfer of
profits as required by law.

The amount due to DelDOT represents Transportation Trust Fund deposits to the General Fund
due to DelDOT.

(b)Transfers In From/Out to Other Funds

Transfers in and transfers out from/to other funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balance and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net
position, proprietary funds represent transfers between funds. Transfers are used to 1) move
revenues from the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fund that statute requires to
expend them, 2) use restricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, 3) move
profits from the Lottery Fund, as required by State law, and 4) move bond proceeds from
Capital Projects to the General Fund or Local School District Fund to cover expenses paid by
the General Fund.

A schedule of transfers in and transfers out for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows
(expressed in thousands):

Transfers In

Local
School
General District DelDOT Total
Transfers Out
General $ - % 85,986 $ 9,419 $ 95,405
Federal 47,976 - - 47,976
Local School District Fund 121,950 - - 121,950
Capital Projects 1,003 - - 1,003
Lottery 244,714 - - 244,714
DelDOT 10,627 - - 10,627
Total $ 426,270 $ 85,986 $ 9,419 $ 521,675

74



State of Delaware Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2017

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)
Beginning Ending

Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land $ 482,739  $ 4,270 $ - 8 487,009

Easements 83,294 - - 83,294

Construction-In-Progress 275,492 118,109 (267,598) 126,003
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated 841,525 122,379 (267,598) 696,306
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Vehicles 94,514 9,911 (3,915) 100,510

Buildings 4,052,196 11,534 (11,504) 4,052,226

Equipment 109,346 2,441 (7,357) 104,430

Land Improvements 291,623 4,165 - 295,788

Computer Software 133,450 261,776 - 395,226
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 4,681,129 289,827 (22,776) 4,948,180
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Vehicles (68,492) (6,920) 3,830 (71,582)

Buildings (1,409,079) (90,577) 5,056 (1,494,600)

Equipment (76,360) (5,686) 7,045 (75,001)

Land Improvements (110,985) (13,557) - (124,542)

Computer Software (89,175) (27,724) - (116,899)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,754,091) (144,464) 15,931 (1,882,624)
Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated, Net 2,927,038 145,363 (6,845) 3,065,556
Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 3,768,563 § 267,742  §  (274,443) § 3,761,862
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Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities Beginning Ending
DelDOT Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land $ 306,704  $ 3594 §$ - 8 310,298

Infrastructure 3,823,201 181,862 - 4,005,063

Welcome and Service Center 22,100 - - 22,100

Construction In Progress 15,672 2,664 (7,568) 10,768
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated 4,167,677 188,120 (7,568) 4,348,229
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Buildings & Improvements 145,591 17,447 - 163,038

Furniture & Equipment 308,635 25,263 (24,305) 309,593
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 454,226 42,710 (24,305) 472,631
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Buildings & Improvements (49,137) (4,864) - (54,001)

Furniture & Equipment (170,064) (24,777) 23,936 (170,905)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (219,201) (29,641) 23,936 (224,906)
Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated, Net 235,025 13,069 (369) 247,725
Business-type Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 4,402,702 $ 201,189 § (7,937) $ 4,595,954

Depreciation expense was charged to the following primary government functions as follows:

Depreciation Expense
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 23,719
Health and Children's Services 24,271
Judicial and Public Safety 17,985
Natural Resources and Environmental Control 4,720
Labor 68
Education 73,701
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 144,464
Business-type Activities:
DelDOT $ 29,641
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities $ 29,641

In fiscal year 2010, construction was completed on the Welcome and Service Center (the
Center) pursuant to an agreement with HMS Host Toll Roads, Inc. (HMS), under which HMS
financed, designed, and built the Center and continues to maintain and operate the Center for
35 years. Under the agreement, HMS is responsible for maintaining the Center to current
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conditions and insuring the Center over the course of the 35 years of operations. DelDOT is
entitled to a percentage of all sales from fuel and non-fuel items sold. At the end of the
agreement, operation of the Center will be transferred to DelDOT in its enhanced condition.
DelDOT reports the Center as a capital asset with a carrying value of $22.1 million and a
related deferred inflow of resources of $17.7 million as of June 30, 2017. The deferred inflow
of resources is amortized over the 35 year life of the agreement.

NOTE 7 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources are defined as consumption of net assets by the government
that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are defined as
acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.
Deferred outflows increase net position, similar to assets and deferred inflows decrease net
position, similar to liabilities.

The components of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reported
in the government wide financial statements as of June 30, 2017 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Governmental Business-type Primary

Activities Activities Government
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on Refundings of Debt $ - % 33277 $ 33,277
Pensions -See Note 17 756,874 35,547 792,421
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 756,874 $ 68,824 $ 825,698
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Service Concession Arrangement $ - % 17,679 $ 17,679
Pensions -See Note 17 39,907 4,637 44,544
Gain on Refundings of Debt 33,018 - 33,018
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 72,925 $ 22,316 $ 95,241

Deferred inflows of resources on the governmental funds balance sheet as of June 30, 2017 are
unavailable revenues as follows (expressed in thousands):

Total
Federal Local School Governmental
General Fund Fund District Fund Funds
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Accounts Receivable $ 40,239 $ 17,532 $ 171  $ 57,942
Taxes Receivable 35,479 - 42,000 77,479
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 75,718  $ 17,532 § 42,171  $ 135,421
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NOTE 8 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

General obligation bonds have been authorized and issued primarily to provide funds for
acquisition and construction of capital facilities for State administrative operations, public and
higher education, public and mental health, corrections and conservation purposes and for
maintenance and construction of highway facilities.

The State Constitution provides that the State may issue general obligation bonds for specific
purposes in amounts approved by the General Assembly. The enabling acts pursuant to which the
bonds are issued provide that all bonds issued shall be direct obligations of the State; that is, the
bonds are secured by the pledge of the full faith and credit of the State. General obligation bonds
are redeemed over a period not to exceed 20 years, generally from available resources in the
general fund. Accordingly, the State has generally issued 20-year serial bonds with equal amounts
of principal maturing each year. Bonds outstanding have call provisions providing for early
redemption at the option of the State, generally beginning 8 or 10 years following the date of issue
in the inverse order of maturity, in whole or in part, at redemption prices not to exceed 100% of
par value.

On March 9, 2017, the State issued $225.0 million of general obligation bonds maturing between
March 1, 2018 and March 1, 2037. The bonds bear coupons between 3.125% and 5.0% and yield
between 0.80% and 3.39%. Proceeds were used to fund various capital projects as authorized by
the General Assembly.

Bonds issued and outstanding totaled $1,955.8 million at June 30, 2017. Of this amount, $496.6
million is supported by property taxes collected by the local school districts. During fiscal year
2017, the local school district funds transferred $64.8 million of property tax revenue to the State
to meet the required debt service on their share of the debt.
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The State is authorized to issue an additional $179.9 million of general obligation bonds at June 30,
2017. Interest rates and maturities of the outstanding general obligation bonds are detailed as

follows:
General Obligation Bonds - Governmental Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)
Maturity Balance
Interest Date Outstanding at
Sale # Description Rates (Fiscal Year) June 30, 2017
230 GO 2017 3.13% - 5.00% 2037 225,000
229 GO 2016D 2.00% - 5.00% 2032 85,470
227 GO 2016C 4.00% - 5.00% 2027 35,455
226 GO 2016B 5.00% 2019 10,185
225 GO 2016A 2.13% - 5.00% 2036 180,385
222 GO 2014B 2.00% - 5.00% 2035 283,180
221 GO 2014A 3.00% - 5.00% 2034 150,000
220 GO 2013B 2.00% - 5.00% 2033 162,180
219 GO 2013A 2.00% - 5.00% 2027 111,330
215 GO 2011A 2.00% - 5.00% 2032 89,433
214 GO 2010D 4.55% 2030 59,580
213 GO 2010C 3.10% - 4.60% 2031 115,775
211 GO 2010B 2.00% - 5.00% 2025 70,825
209 GO 2010A 1.50% - 5.00% 2025 45,940
208 GO 2009D 3.70% - 5.30% 2030 160,550
206 GO 2009C 3.00% - 5.00% 2028 132,620
199 QZAB 2006C 0% 2023 1,433
195 GO 2005C 5.00% 2023 35,290
192 QZAB 2004B 0% 2021 224
190 QZAB 2003D 0% 2019 908
Total, Gross 1,955,763
Plus: Unamortized Bond Premium 221,242
Total General Obligation Bonds 2,177,005
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The following table sets forth the future debt service requirements on outstanding general
obligation bonds at June 30, 2017:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 176,785 $ 82,895 $ 259,680
2019 159,418 75,288 234,706
2020 142,125 68,346 210,471
2021 140,024 61,697 201,721
2022 139,764 55,185 194,949
2023-2027 610,852 184,626 795,478
2028-2032 426,465 70,069 496,534
2033-2037 160,330 11,868 172,198
Total $ 1,955,763 $ 609,974 $ 2,565,737

Changes in general obligation bonded debt during the year ended June 30, 2017 are summarized
in Note 13.

In prior years, the State has defeased certain general obligation bonds by creating separate
irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued or cash appropriated and the proceeds have been
used to purchase U.S. government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments
and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt.
Accordingly, the debt has been considered defeased and has been removed as a liability from the
government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2017, a total of $140.3 million of defeased
bonds were outstanding.

NOTE 9 REVENUE BONDS
Revenue Bonds

The State Constitution empowers certain State agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are not
supported by the full faith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from
acquired or constructed assets or some other stream of revenues to retire the debt and pay related
interest.

Primary Government

In August, 2011, pursuant to the Delaware Energy Act, 29 Del. C. §8059, the Sustainable Energy
Utility, Inc. (SEU), a Delaware nonprofit corporation created by and for the benefit of the State,
issued $67.4 million of its Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. Energy Efficiency Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011 (the SEU Bonds). Of the total amount, $56.2 million of the SEU Bonds were issued
to finance energy conservation measures for multiple State agencies, and the remaining amount of
$11.2 million was issued on behalf of Delaware State University. Under separate Installment
Payment Agreements, each agency and Delaware State University is obligated to make installment
payments to the SEU in accordance with the Energy Performance Contracting Act, 29 Del. C.
§6971. Further, each agency and Delaware State University separately entered into Guaranteed
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Energy Savings Agreements with various energy services companies, which guaranteed that the
savings achieved will be sufficient to cover the financing costs associated with the SEU bonds
upon completion of the energy conservation measures. In the event that savings are not realized,
the energy services companies will be held responsible for the deficiency.

The SEU Bonds are limited obligations of the SEU, secured by the trust estate and payable only
from amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for payment under the Installment
Payment Agreements. No funds appropriated to any agency for any purpose are available to pay
the Installment Payments of any other agency or Delaware State University.

The final maturity of the SEU bonds is September 15, 2034 with future debt service requirements
as follows as of June 30, 2017:

Sustainable Energy Utility Revenue Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 3,055 $ 2,179 $ 5234
2019 1,855 2,067 3,922
2020 1,920 1,982 3,902
2021 2,040 1,887 3,927
2022 2,110 1,787 3,897

2023-2027 12,195 7,288 19,483

2028-2032 15,195 4,061 19,256

2033-2035 8,595 599 9,194
Total $ 46,965 § 21,850 $ 68,815

Plus Unamortized
Bond Premium 3,521

Total including
premiums $ 50,486

DelDOT Fund
Delaware Transportation Authority (Authority)

The Authority is subject to oversight by DelDOT and is included in the DelDOT fund. The
Authority assists in the implementation of the State’s plans and policies regarding the coordination
and development of a comprehensive, balanced transportation system for the State. It has the
power to develop a unified system of air, water, vehicular and specialized transportation in the
State. The Authority includes the Transportation Trust Fund and the Delaware Transit Corporation.
The Secretary of the Department of Transportation, with consent of the Governor, appoints the
Authority’s Director.

To assist the Authority in financing a unified transportation system, the State created a

Transportation Trust Fund (the Trust Fund) within the Authority which receives all receipts of the
Authority. The primary sources of funding of the Trust Fund are motor fuel taxes and motor
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vehicles fees imposed and collected by the State and deposited in the Trust Fund, and revenue
from the Delaware Turnpike, which the Authority owns and operates. The Authority also has the
power to issue bonds, with legislative authorization, to finance improvements to the State's
transportation system. Debt issued by the Authority does not constitute a debt of the State or a
pledge of its general taxing power or of its full faith and credit. Rather, the outstanding revenue
bonds are obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge and assignment
of certain tolls and revenues such as motor fuel tax revenue, motor vehicle document fees, and
motor vehicle registrations. The Authority may apply Trust Fund revenue in excess of debt service
requirements for transportation projects, subject to legislative authorization, and may pledge any
or all of this revenue to secure financing for these projects.

On May 10, 2017, the Trust Fund issued $107.0 million of Transportation System Senior Revenue
Bonds, 2017 Series, maturing between July 1, 2018 and July 1, 2037. The bonds bear coupon rates
between 2.5% and 5.0%. The bonds were issued to provide funding for projects and as an advance
refunding. The advance refunding resulted in an economic gain of $3.2 million and a reduction of
$3.8 million in future debt service payments.

The Authority has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that
were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and is therefore not reported as a
liability. At June 30, 2017, the amount of defeased debt outstanding amounted to $209.4 million.

The Authority has a total of $213.5 million in authorized but unissued revenue bonds at June 30,

2017. Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2017 amounted to $982.9 million and are presented as
follows:
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Delaware Tr